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Th tatuton· oltH'<.' ot C\\ outh Wnk · Auditor General is 
<. t, bli h I b\- th · Pubhc Finane and Audit Act 198'3. The Audit 

ffi< support th Auditor General in m cling statutory 
uir m nts undt•r this A t. Thev olre part of lh c:\( ountability 

h nism wh ·r bv th Parli<ml nt holds th Government 
unt blt for fulhlli;lg it responsihillti .. 11w Audit Offic as ist 

th \.uditor- t'neml to prO\ide ad\•kc to Parliam nt. Government 
1d th O\' ·nun ·nt al! ·n ics whiC'h ar audited. 

The.: Auditor General i r ponsible for audits under the Public 
Fin n c and Audit ct 1983. other New South Wales Acts and 
Australia' · orporations Law. Th Auditor-General also has 
respon!:'ibiliti s in re p t of Commonwealth grants and payments 
to the tate und r Commonwealth legislation. As a consequence, 
that I !!i lalion is rei vant to Th Audit Office. 

The udit Office i staffed mainly by people who are qualified in 
a ounting and ar killed in auditing. Private sector audit firms 
al o hav been engaged a agents of the Auditor-General and they 
prO\ide about 14°·o of the resources. Audits of New South Wales 
govemm nt agencies are conducted to form an opinion on fmancial 
report_. Al o. ince 1992 a modest capacity has existed to determine 
whether an agency is carrying out its activities effectively, 
economically and efficiently and in compliance with all relevant laws. 

We ee our mission as improving public sector performance by 
providing the best audit service. 

Addresses, telephone and facsimile numbers, and business 
hours of The Audit Office: 

Level 11, 234 Sussex Street, Sydney NSW 2000, Australia 

onday- Friday, 8.30 am- 5.00 pm 

GPO Box 12, Sydney NSW 2001, Australia 

(02) 285-0155 

(02) 285-0100 



The Honourable Lhe Speaker 
Legislative Assembly 
Parliament House 
SYDNEY NSW 2000 

Dear Mr Speaker 

"\oP. Gt:!\1 
\ ~ .§>.a -9"? "' ("' .. 

t . . . 
BOX 12 GPO 

SYDNEY NSW 2001 

Pursuant to Section 12A of lhe Annual Reports (Statutory Bodies) Act 1984, I have pleasure 
in submitting for presentation to the Legislative Assembly the Report. of the activities of The 
Audit Office of New South Wales for the year ended 30 November 1995. 

Yours faithfully 

A C Harris 
27 March 1996 
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Foreword 
by the 
Auditor 
General 

W< have been able, cautiously, to eel >brate results this vear: 
in particular, th culmination of our three year program Lo make I he 
Office a more cUenl-orLented and efficient provider of high quality audit 
services to the public sector. 

111e Office has advanced since we conducted our fir t client survey in 
1992, when iL was seen as peiforming well short of internal and external 
expectations. Our efforts in the intervening years have been directed to 
being the auditor of choice for New South Wales public sector agencies. 

The dedication and professionalism of staff in striving towards this goal 
has been acknowledged. When asked in June 1995 an overwhelming 
mqjority of our clients acknowledged the O.ffke as their public sector 
''Auditor of Clwice ". This is a significant achievement. for in the end iL is 
not what we say or declare about ourselves but what others, particularly 
our audit clients, say about us and the quality of our work and service. 

1his Annual Report also acknowledges that the effort to improve does not 
end with one oorporate plan. The O.ffice wishes to be recognised as a quality 
provider of audit services; it wishes to adopt new work conditions lha1 
better reward achievement and to implement an assessment process to 
help non-peiforming staff. It also looks forward to the jinalisation of the 
legislated review of the Office that commenced in late 1994 so that the 
results can play il1eir part in the setting of Lhe future direction of Lhe Offtee. 

I am proud of the Office and the effort and professionalism with which 
staff have embraced Office initiatives and goals. Without this effort. 
none of the achievements could have taken place. The report that 
follows is a representation of the staff and their achievements 
during the year, in particular the way in which they have dedicated 
themselves to the tasks at hand. I congratulate each one for the 
contribution each has made. 

''An overwhelming 
majority of our clients 

acknowleged the Office 
as their public sector 
"Auditor of Choice" 

Tonv llarns. the Auditor-General. w1th Roclu•lle BrClllln• and 
GeoffO/i1•er from the f'oluy, Research and Managt•mt' fll Branch 
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Just )\"t'r thr 't' \ t'<\r~ .w.o w cornmis ·ion d ur fir l nu Iii client 
sun t'\ rlw n•sult~ ,,. re lt'ss th,lll 11,\ltt ting,, nd ug_gestcd I h t Th 
.\udtt lhu. '' ·ts p IT tvt:d by clients to bt only an aver, gc perform r 
th 1t dtd not prO\ tdt the rangt or depth of advice that audit ll nt 
wtsht 1. l.my who wt r c rit it ,\I ol the me were ctili al of it ov rall 
p rl rmanc '. both t chni al .1nd non t chni al. Th r Jatlvely low 
f t r.Hts charged by th fhce w r not n a ofT ring good value 
~ r n11mcy. or as being partie ul.1rly competitiv . 

' rb)ing the , llnding wa the b li r of udit clients - and at 
least ' 0111 audit ' laff - that th om e had not had to fac those 
pr ssur s I r change \\ith whi h the public rvice was grappling. 
And eH'n though mo t client wer natural or legislated monopolies, 
tt was sugg ted that if fre dom of hoi e wa available to them, few 
of tho a en ie - would hoo Th Audit Office to be the external 
auditor 

\\' th n ·et a goal to be recogni ed by December 1995 as the public 
-e tor auditor of hoice . In each of the intervening years, staff teams 
were form d to deal with key issues and to take the Office towards 
that goal. 

• ln June of 1995 nearly all audit clients were asked for their views 
a to the ability of The Audit Office to meet. their needs and 
whether they considered their needs would be better met. if a 
private ector auditor was appointed as agent of the Auditor­
General In response. clients overwhelmingly acknowledged The 

udit Office as the public sector auditor of choice with only 2 
client ex:pressing a preference for the engagement of a private 
ector audit firm. Those 2 clients have been accommodated. 

• This auditor of choice result has been confirmed by the 1995 
audit client survey. About 78% of survey respondents indicated 
they would choose the Office as their external auditor. 

• One of our audit managers, Andrew Grice, was named the Young 
Accountant of the Year, Government and Academia, by the New 
Accountant newspaper. We have long recognised the exceptional 
quality of our younger staff members and it is gratifying to have 
this acknowledged externally. 

• The emphasis given to our staff training program is starting to 
pay di\idends. Staff who studied for the Society of Certified 
Practising Accountants' CPA Program achieved a higher pass 
rate than the average for that program. 

• As an orgamsation which is part. of the accountability and 
reporting proces es we believe that The Audit Office should lead 
by example. Our annual report received a bronze award in the 
1994 Annual Reports Award scheme which is designed to 
encourage excellence in annual reporting. 

• During the year the audit work load increased (due to a substantial 
reorganisation of government agencies) but a staff freeze prevented 
the employment of adequate audit staff numbers. The efficient 
completion of audit work was ompromised as a consequence. 



Key Operating 
Statistics 

Key Financial 
Statistics 

Outlook 

• A major dl appolnlm nl ha be n lh d Jay In finalising 
negotl lion on an nl rpri gre m nl whi h would a I llh, 
om e lo adopt a more n xibl approach lo mploym nt ncl work 
pra li e and provid Its st ff wilh in enliv whi h would 
ensur the fficient, fC liv and onomical op ration of th 
Office. 

• The financial results continue to be signiflcanlly afC cted by 
movements in the Superannualion Fund balan es h ld in th 
Office's name. An in rease in the assessed sup rannuatlon 
liability resulted in an abnormal charge of $811,537 to lh 
income and expenditure account. 

1994 1995 

Organisations and activilies audited 468 452 

Qualified audit opinions issued 35 64 

Number of reports to Parliament 11 10 

Employment, and equivalent, numbers 279 278 

Chargeable time 56% 54% 

$'000 $'000 

Total Income 20,186 19,712 

Total Expenditure 19,978 19,776 

Operating Surplus/(Deficiency) 
after abnormals 2,077 (875) 

Total Assets 11,239 13,611 

The Office will be seeking ways to better help staff so that they can 
more closely meet clients' expectations. 

The 1995-96 year will see the report arising from the first statutory 
"peer review" of the Office arranged by the Public Accounts 
Committee. 

It will also see the development of a four-year plan lo deal with 
recommendations arising from that report and other issues facing 
The Audit Office so that it is well placed to face the challenges of 
the next century. 
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Efficiency 
\\l(itt t hts to tatt: pubhc s ctor -pt:nditurc 

(rents p r S'OO 

Economy 
hi r co"t ltt' ms . 

- .w rage taft alary · allowan 
- vera ;e hourly cost of contri:.l 

1994 1995 

0 o 65% 

64 

$987 
n/a 

The Auditor en raJ i part ofUH:' public ector accountability regime 
und r '' hich governm nt ae;en i ar a ountable to Ministers and 

are a countable to Parliament. 

But that a ountability doe not exist merely for its own sake. 
c rdingly. The udit Office ha agreed its mission as: 

Improving public sector performance by providing 
the best audit service. 

Th Auditor -General is independent of the Executive and is not 
part of Parliament. The Office provides support to the Auditor­
General to a i t him to fulfill his mandate under the Public Finance 
and Audic Act. It doe this through tabling of reports and 
recommendation to Parliament, to Ministers and to the 
mana ement of the government agencies. 

\\'ark i performed in 2 main streams, these being: 

• financial audits. which provide an independent opinion on the 
financial reports of government agencies, and 

• performance audits, which provide an independent report on 
elected government programs or activities in terms of their 

economy. efficiency, effectiveness and compliance with all 
relevant laws. 

In the past the public sector was seen by many as a large, specialised 
field. \\lith organisations ranging from extremely large enterprises 
with complex infrastructures and operations to very small 
organi ations It had been thought that the myriad of peculiarities 
aero government required a specialised knowledge and 
con tderable length of experience on the part of the public sector 
auditor. 

That has changed. Privatisation, corporatisalion, commercialisation 
and the introduction of accrual accounting mean that government 
entitie are increa ingly trying to operate more like businesses. Our 
annual client urvey tells us that clients' needs are changing and 
they require an auditor who has up-to-dale knowledge and can 
as 1 t in agencies· adoption of best practice. 

Our audit clients particularly those with commercial goals, have high 
xp tation Overall, The Audit Office has come under increasing 



Performance 
Indicators 

pr •ssur from the clients to be mor co t IT dive ·mel provi le higher 
value for mon y. licnls hav growing xp rtations for bctler r •spon ·c 
tim , co t and quality. 1 h y would lik lo sec Th Audit tnc' cl liver a 
better 1 v I of s rvi e, and some would like more specialised s •rvic 'S 

such as lax advi and busine s con ult ncy. 

At the same lim , there is an m rging under landing thalth public 
sector audit is not equivalent to an audit und rtaken in lh private 
sector. Those dif~ rences stem from th mor on rous accountability 
requirements in th public sector. Th y r 0 t Parliament' d ire 
that Government agencies account for the same finan lal 
relationships in a consistent way. Similarly, Parliament would wish 
that financial information is reported in a manner that most 
accurately captures the substance of the arrangements. Public sector 
audits also have an emphasis on probity and compliance is u 
that is not present in private sector audits. 

Another difference between public and private sector audits lies in 
the responsibility that the Auditor -General has to report to 
Parliament on mallers that Parliament ought to know. This 
requirement for public reporting can - and does - mean that the 
relationship between the audit client and the public sector auditor 
need not be the same as that enjoyed in the private sector between 
the auditor and the auditee. 

Of course, private sector auditors can efficiently audit in the public 
sector - but not in the same way that they operate in the private 
sector. 

To some extent, the performance of the Office can be judged by the 
impact of its reports. Often that impact can be measured only in 
the longer term, since the recommendations in major reports are 
usually of a long term nature. 

Such difficulty aside, the following indicators provide an assessment 
of our performance: 

Area of 
Performance 

Effectiveness 
(outcomes) 

Efficiency 
(cost of outputs) 

Economy 
(cost of inputs) 

Compliance (with 
all relevant laws) 

Indicator Used 

• Extent of client satisfaction with The Audit 
Office 

• Financial audits - improvements in 
financial reporting by clients 

• Performance audits- action taken by clients 
• Audit costs in relation lo the value of 

transactions audited 
• Percentage of staff lime spent on audits 

("chargeable lime") 
• Charge-out rates for audit staff 
• Major cost items: 

alaries 
- contract auditor · cost 
- office rental 

• Known breaches of 1 gi lalion by the Office 
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/::.xtent of Client ari,faction 

\t y ·,u· -t:nd ,\s part ol our independently conducted eli nt urv y. 
,\ m,\11 number of Parli< m ·ntarian wer int rviewed and all 
e. pn.~sed postltv opinion on th p rformanee ofTh Audit Offi 
over t ht last tw ~1'" month . 

In addition. ,\ selection or our audit li nt (that is. th agen ies 
which w audit) were <l ked to rat our performan e on certain 

titeria ( e ction titled Corporate Plan and Progress) and U1e 
ratine, was U1en converted to an overall mea ure of our performance. 
While mo~t audit eli nt acknowledged that they had perceived 
improvement in the Office. thi did not translate into an increase in 
the overall audtt client ati faction index, as shown in the 
followine; table: 

cludit ( lient ati,fac:tion Index 

Re ·ult 
Tar~et 

1993 
63% 
70% 

1994 
66% 
75% 

1995 
65% 
80% 

Within th1 year's overall rating of 65%, clients rated the private 
contractor who work for the Auditor-General slightly lower than 
iliey rated Audit Office teams. The former were rated at 62.7% 
and the latter. 65.1 %. This represented a significant change from 
ilie previous year when the private contractors were rated at 82% 
and our own teams at 65%. 

Effecti~·ene of Financial Audits 

Quality of Reporting by Clients 

Over time the Office can influence and encourage improved 
financial reporting. and the percentage of reporting entities 
receiving a qualified audit opinion can be considered, in part, 
an indicator of the influence which the Office has on public 
ector accountability. (An audit opinion is qualified when The 

Audit Office has identified a deficiency in an entity's financial 
tatements which is of significant magnitude or nature.) 

During the past year 64 qualified audit opinions were issued 
representing 13.7% of all opinions issued. In 1994 the figure 
was 35. The mcrease this year can be attributed mainly to 30 
opinions which were qualified on a common basis, namely the 
uncertainty regarding the taxation of the Government 
uperannualion fund. If these 30 were excluded (on the basis 

of being an exceptional and non-recurring qualification) the 
percentage of qualified opinions in 1995 would be 7.2% (compared 
to 7.8% in 1994). 

The report ~Who Audits Australia?" (Interim Report 1995) shows 
that 13.8% of the private sector companies included in that report 
received qualified audit opinions from their private sector 
auditor . 



Percenfa!Je of Financial Reports Requirill!J 
A Qua!U'ied Audit Opinion 
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Timeliness of Reporting 

Another factor affecting the usefulness of financial informa tion is its 
timeliness . That timeliness, in turn, is generally a fun ction of how 
soon after year-end the client presents the financial statements for 
audit . Again , the Office can influence and encourage tim ely 
submission of financial statements for audit. The speed with whi h 
the audit is then completed and the opinion issued is more directly 
(but not completely) under our control. 

The following table shows the percentage of financial s lat m nls 
submitted for audit by the due date for submission and th 
percentage of audits ompleted by the due date for ompletion . 

Timeliness of Financial Reporting 

1993 1994 1995 
Percentage of finan ial 
statements submitted 
by due date 95.6% 92.4% 82% 

Per entage of audit 
opinions issued by due date 85.3% 93 .0% 83% 
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Reasons for Delays 

D lay~ m ubmittmg finan ial t t m nt for audit in 1995 an be 
, ttnbut d to : 

• th i uin to a en ie v ry lat in their accounting cycle of 
entr, 1 gov rnment a counting in tru lions, and 

• in dequate plannin b ome a encies for timely production of 
finan 1al tatement . 

Delay m i uin audit opinions were due mainly to: 

• Government-wide staff freeze which prevented The Audit Office 
from employing the staff numbers required for a significant 
period during the year. 

• the poor quality of some financial statements or supporting 
record . and 

• delay by ome client officers in signing the fmancial statements 
(which must occur before the audit opinion can be issued). 

Effectivene of Performance Audits 

During 1994-95 the Government acted on most of the performance 
audits tabled during the year. The responses included: 

• acceptance of the fmdings in the report concerning the Proposed 
Sale of the State Bank of NSW, which Parliament had required 
as a precondition to fmalising the sale; 

• acceptance of the findings in the report on the M2 Motorway, 
which Parliament had also required be carried out before action 
proceeded further; 

• acceptance of the findings and recommendations in the report 
concerning Joint Operations in the Education Sector, including 
adoption by the agencies concerned of The Guide to Best 
Practice developed as part of the report; 

• acceptance by the Department of School Education of the 
fmdings and recommendations in the report concerning Effective 
Utilisation of School Facilities, leading to the development of a 
detailed plan of action to address the issues raised; and 

• acceptarlce of the findings and recommendations in the reports 
on Luna Park and on Government Advertising, with significant 
action on the latter expected during 1995-96. 

Potential for achieving improved value-for -money results of nearly 
S million per annum were identified in lhe audit which examined 
the effective use of school facilities. 

10t all performance audit reports are designed to produce 
quantifiable monetary savings or improvements in value-for-money . 
Report can give assurance to Parliament on the "due process" of 
decision making in key areas and indicate whether officials have 
acted in the be t interests of the State. 



Efficiency 
(Cost of Outputs) 

Su h reports wer a feature of performan e audit op rations during 
1994-95, with the Offi e meeting requ sls from ParHam nl and th 
Government, oflen with a very short turnaround Uust on w kin 
the case of the M2 Report) . 

Audit Costs 

A common indicator of audit efficiency is the relationship of audit 
costs to the value of transactions audited. In normal terms the 
lower the audit costs per dollar audited, the more effi ienl is the 
audit. Of course, relatively high costs may not reflect adversely on 
audit efficiency. The higher costs may reflect the quality or 
complexity of client accounting and financial systems. 

Possibly the most meaningful overall indicator of this type is th 
comparison of total Audit Office costs with total NSW State Public 
Sector Expenditure (as per the State Consolidated Financial 
Statements). Both sets of cost figures are compiled using the accrual 
method, which is generally preferred to a cash basis. 

Audit Costs to Public Sector Expenditure 

1993 1994 1995 
Total NSW State Public Sector 

Expenditure ($billions) 29.0 28.9 30.7 
Audit Office Operating 

Expenditure ($millions) 15.2 20.0 19.8 
Cost of Audit (cents per $'000) 52.4 69.2 64.4 

The sharp increase in the cost of audit in 1994 can be attributed 
largely to the (permanent) cost of increasing staff numbers in our 
Performance Audit Branch and a (one-om cost in connection with 
the review of the sale of the State Bank. 

Costs of the two audit programs are compared with Total NSW Slate 
Public Sector Expenditure in the following table: 

Program Costs to Public Sector Expenditure 

1993 

Cost of Attest Audit (cents per S'OOOJ 44.7 
Cost of Performance Audit (cents per $'000) n/a 

1994 

50.9 
7.9 

1995 

48.7 
5 .9 

In respect of other Australian public sectors there is no publi h d 
material showing both Slate expenditure and Audit Offi 
expenditure on an accrual basis. However, a comparison with 2 
other offices can be made using published mat rial compiled on a 
different basis. 
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Northern Western 
Territory!:ll Australial3l NSW 

tatt or T tTitory fran action (II 

-.;b lit l I.·) 

Audit ost tsrnillton~l 

ost ot udit (Ci.'rtt~ J>t'r ~·oooJ 

3.0 
2.2 

74.6 

14. 
8. 

57.5 

49.0 
19.8 
40.4 

·ole (I) : The t'<llue q/ tale Trnn~aclions (outLays and rcucnuc) for the year ertded 
June 1995 as per Au ·trnlian Bureau q/ tal is lies 

!21 : .-\~ pt:r page 26 qf 1995 Armual Report q(Tcnilon.J Audit Offtr:e 
[3) : As pt•r page 9 of I 95 Annual Report of late Audit Office 

Th table hould b view d \vith an appreciation that differences in 
ize and differ nee in audit mandate will affect the cost of audit. 

Private ector Compari ions 

compari on with the private sector is possible using an audit fee 
analy i which appeared in the December 1993 issue of Chartae 

ccountan y ews. That analysis examined five diversified industrial 
companie in re pect of certain key audit cost ratios, of which the 
ratio of audit fees to client revenue is a convenient basis for 
compari on with The Audit Office. 

Takine; from that analysis the 2 companies with the largest revenue, 
the comparison is shown in the following table. Again, substantial 
difference in size will affect the cost of the audit. 

Prh·ate Sector I 'S Public Sector Audit Costs 

Trading/Operating Revenue 
($billions) 

Auditors' Fees ($millions) 

Cost of Audit (cents per $ '000) 

CSRlll 
4.6 

3.7 
80.4 

Pacific NSW Public 
DunlopUl 

6.3 

6.0 
95.2 

Sector2l 

31.3 

14.0 
44.7 

, 'ote (I) : lnformation taken from the Latest accounts available as at December 1993 
(2): lriformation taken from the State Consolidated Financial Statements for 

the year ended June 1995 

Chartae Accountancy ews magazine of October 1995 provided 
information on partner numbers, staff numbers and fee revenue 
for a number of Australian accounting firms. Taking the average of 
the 5 firms closest in size to The Audit Office (in terms of staff 
numbers and fee revenue) the following comparisons could be 
drawn. 

Prh·ate Sector v\ Public Sector Staff umbers and Fee Earnings 

Fee Staff/ Fees Earned 
Total Income Partner Per Person 

Personnel ($million) RatioUl ($'000) 
Average of 

5 private firms 193 17.7 5.4 91.7 
The Audit Office 239 15.2 8.9 63.6 

.ote (1): 1embers of the Senior Executive Service in The Audit Office were taken 
as the equwalent of partners in LllP private j'trms 



The previous table inclicates lhal the Senior r.:xeculivc level in Tile 
Auclil Office manage a larger number of stall than th •ir privat' 
sector count •rparts. 

In terms off, arn ci p •r person th private firm~:; earn ·cl consicl 
erably mor than The Audit Offi · (adjusting for 18 p •rformam·e 
audit taff who do not, g n rally, ontributc to fees <'arn cl). The 
main reason for the differ n e is that The Auclll Office' Is restricted 
by legislation to providing audit services but prival' llrms arc nol so 
reslricted and a considerable part of lh ir revenue come from higher 
priced services. 

Chargeable Time 

Another indicator of the efficiency of an audit organisation is lhe 
percentage of staff lime charged to audits (as oppos d to lim sp nl 
on administrative and other tasks). The maximum achievable 
chargeable time percentage will depend upon a number of factor 
including the staff structure, lime devoted to training and the like. 
Generally, the higher the percentage of chargeable lime, the bell r 
in terms of efficiency. 

Chargeable Time Percentage f'J 

Actual 
Target 

1993 

58% 
58% 

1994 

56% 
60% 

1995 

54% 

60% 

Nole (1): Total days charged to audits as a percentage of total week days in the 
year (260) for aLL staff 

The table shows a declining chargeable lime percentage which is 
mainly due to the increased administrative effort associated with 
establishing an expanded performance audit and information 
systems audit capability and increased training. 

Charge-out Rate 

The charge-out rate for audit staff can be yel another indicator of 
efficiency. 

Movement in Audit Office Charge-out Rates 

1993 

Effective hourly charge-out rates $70 

1994 

$67 

1995 

$72 

Our client survey continues to show that client do not believ lh 
the Office is cost-competitive or lhat il giv s particularly good value 
for money. In light of lhe private firms' audit pricing policy, which 
in the past has s n audit services as a loss I ad r. 11. i unlik Jy 
that The Audit Offic will be able to price its audit work con id r bly 
cheaper than lh firm bulth issu of providing vc lu for money 
is one where some improv m nt hould b po sibl . 
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Hajor Co't Items 

·r ht most st!.?,mhc,lnt mdtvtc\u,ll e pc nsc item incurred by Th Audit 
llll't' ,\r' s,\laries. ortkc rental .md contract auditor,· o t . In 1995, 

tht s c ·pense ttt ms ,\mount ct to s 11. million. SO. 7 million and 
s2 2 m!lhon n :specti\ ' ly 

ontr,\ tor::. , re cho en by a ' lectiv tend ring pro e s which 
mdudes price ,1s one cril rion. 

Th other 2 m.jor co t item are < naly d in th table following. 

~utlir Office -l1•eragt• a/ary and Allowances 

verage weekly salary and allowances 
o-o increa e m·er pre,ious year 

verage Weekly Earnings- NSWll 
% mcrea -e m·er previ.ou year 

1993 

$902 
0.4% 
$541 
3.0% 

1994 

$937 
4.0% 
$549 
1.6% 

1995 

$987 
5.4% 
$573 
4.6% 

. ote ( 1): Average Weekly Earnings · NSW as per Australian Bureau of Statistics 
catalogue 6302.0 

The increa e m lhe average weekly salary of Audit Office staff during 
the period reflects changes to award/ agreement conditions. It also 
matche the percentage changes received in the broader 
community. 

Office Rental and Cleaning Expense 

Average cost per metre 
% Increase (decrease) over 

previous year 

1993 
$267 

(17%) 

1994 
$243 

(9%) 

1995 
$249 

2% 

The reduction in average cost in the years prior to 1995 was due to 
extra office space acquired in each year at a lower cost per metre. 
·o extra space was acquired in 1995. 

The Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 generally requires lhat audit 
opinions be issued within 10 weeks of receipt of the financial 
tatements by The Audit Office. The requirement was met during 

the year in 83% of cases. The Office also conducts audits under the 
Companie and Superannuation legislation of the Commonwealth 
and under the 'ew South Wales State Owned Corporations Act 1989. 
Breaches of the Companies Legislation occurred when officers signed 
audit opinions on company accounts without authority. 

The Office is also subject to the range of Commonwealth and State 
legislation and State directions affecting other government agencies 
(concerning taxation. annual reports, accounting practices, etc). No 
known breach of these laws and regulations occurred during the 
year. 



Accountability 
of the Office 

Complaints 

The Office Is <.H'Counhblc to Parll m •nl. Our v<u-lous r ·ports art' 
pr nl d to Parli mcnl und can be cl bal cl. This annual r ·port is 
a part of lhe a counlabllily rrang m nl. It contains th' financial 
slalem nt of th Office which ar subje t to incl p ndent audil by 
an xternal chart r d accountant whos · report appears wilh tho ·e 
statements. 

The Office is also accountable through reviews conduct d by lh 
Public Accounts Commiltee of the Parliam nl. As part of its oversight 
role the Public Accounts Committee appoint d a p r r vi w r of the 
Office in November 1994. The final report is nol y t available. 

r

'During the past ye,ar there were no requ sts under the Freedom of 
Information (Amendment) Act 1992. 

The Office is subject to invesligalion by the Ombudsman of any 
referred complaints. We received no nolice of any such complaints. 

During the year The Audit Office itself receiv d a number of 
complaints about the Office switchboard and advice has been taken 
to rectify the problem. 

Other complaints which have indicated the need for a tion hav 
been the subject of examination by audit officers where the maller 
falls within the responsibility of the Auditor-General. 
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53 

n/a 

50 

n/a 

$323 

5 

2 

192 

36 

(601) 

66 

4 

n/u 

51 

5 

$72 

9 

n/a 

$323 

435 

14 

5 

184 

43 

17.114 

1.842 

6.2 

ro on opposlle pa9 J 

1993 

6:1% 

5% 

5% 

n/a 

52 

5% 

$70 

$902 

n/a 

$267 

438 

23 

5 

193 

52 

$17.512 

2.864 

5.2 

1994 

2% 

93% 

Oil 

14% 

69 

56% 

$67 

$937 

$66 

$243 

468 

28 

11 

206 

72 

$20.186 

2 077 

4.7 

FSI 

19lJ5 

n/a 

60% 

$67 

$950 

$68 

$245 

440 

23 

16 

220 

59 

$18.650 

(475) 

4.8 

ctual 
1995 

65% 

86% 

83% 

95% 

58% 

64 

54% 

$72 

$987 

n/a 

$249 

452 

17 

10 

222 

56 

$19,712 

(875) 

4.4 

1996 

70% 

6% 

95% 

99% 

80% 

n/a 

56% 

$70 

$975 

$70 

$249 

450 

20 

13 

240 

42 

$20,730 

5 

4 .5 



Fh,e- Year Comparalh'e J:.:xpendilure 

30 

20 

10 

0 

1991 1992 1993 199-t 1995 

- Total NSW Stale Public Sector Expenditure in $ bil 

- Audit Oflice Expenditure in $ mil. 

Notes 
n/a Not available. 

(1) This is a measure of how satisfied audit clients are with The Audit Office and 
has been derived from a survey discussed elsewhere in this report. No 
quanlilalive measurement is available in respect of Parliament or other client 
groups. 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

The lime within which audll opinions must be issued is set by law and is, 
generally, within ten weeks of receipt ofihefmancial statements by The Audit 
Office. 

There is no statutory lime limit for the issue of reports to Ministers. Unlll 1992 
the lime period used for measuring performance was two months q{ler the 
related audit opinion. In August 1993 this was changed lo len weeks after the 
related audit opinion. In October 1994 this was revised and the report to the 
Minister will now be issued at the same time as the related audit opinion. 

There is no statutory lime limiljor the issue of reports to management . The> 
Guarantee of Service originally set a period of three weeks ajl r complel ion o.f 
the interim audtl field work and len week after year end for the final audit 
management leiter. In Ociob r 1994 ihe period.for lhefinal audit management 
letter was changed lofour weeks after audit completion as a more appropriate 
target. 

Does not include the Allltlial Report on the activilles qf'Tite A11dil O[{lce. 

Equivalent oj sla.ff numbers required to replace sub contract, temporary and 
consultant staff based on average cost per stqff member. 

This is calculated as reoenue from.fees and contrlbttllon.s cllvidf'd by aoerngC' 
receivables and work in progress for the year. 
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In r t tnt \' ,\rs Tht .\u(h\ llkt' has been undergoing substantial 
t h \ll..._t's to r spond to the ch,\llt'lll!,l'~ fadn!!, 1!. 

\t thl U l!,illllilll! ot" l ~) '~a thrt'l' \'t'i\r pian \V,\S dt Vt'lOpt.'ci. lll' vi ion 
lor l'ht \udit flll't' w,\s th,lt. by December 1 95, it wou ld be 
r l )..._lllst d as tht { cntn.: or t' edlenle lor the provision of public 
"t l tor \U(hting and r lated s •n·ice- and advice. 

ur broad goals. to underpin our \i ion. wer to: 

• lJ • r ·coe:nbed in the market a the publi sector auditor of 
choice: 

• unplt m nt th' b st technical products/services and 
methodologi ·: 

• earn sum ient revenue to ensure su tainable self-sufficjency 
and to unden\Tite r quired inve tment; 

• develop internal sy tems to ensure the effective overall 
op ration of The Audit Office: 

• attract and retain highest quality staff who are supported by 
training and de,·elopment programs and career opportunities; 
and 

• build an organi alional culture that embraces quality as a core 
value. and promotes commitment to excellence and client service. 

In 1993 our three-year plan detailed a number of key issues and 
implication for The Audit Office drawn from a survey of our clients 
and a ene of management and staff workshops. 
The e were 

• the role of The Audit Office was often a source of confusion, 
repre enling different meanings for different parties; 

• it was een as out of step with its audit clients who were 
under increased pressure in terms of their own management 
and accountability; 

• th re was a view that The Audit Office was less skilled in the 
newer and growing areas of need such as EDP auditing, 
performance auditing and commercial accounting practices; 
and 

• there was a need to develop and apply a client service 
philo ophy. 

Sub equent client surveys together with general feedback and 
di cu ion ,,;th various Audit Office personnel brought to light 
the following additional issues and implications: 

• Audit Office staff required leadership and motivation to commit 
to the Office's future direction; 

• 
• 

• 

Audit Office takeholders were uncertain about the quality 
and kill levels of audit staff; 

there wa continued un ertainty in relation to The Audit Office 
audit philosophy and the balance (and possible conflict) 
b twe n financial and performance auditing; 

c li nts needed reassurance that they were receiving value 
for money and al o needed information on The Audit Office 

n'iee capability: and 



Auditor of Choice 

• client service was improving but was slillnot at an acC' •ptabll' 
1 v >I. 

At the beginning of each year. staff teams wcr' form d to d al with 
th key issues arising and to lak lhe Office towards its goals. 
Progress over the past years has been as follows. 

Clients' Views 

The first goal we set for the Office was to b recognis d in lhe market 
as the public sector auditor of choice. Th ullimate aim of whether 
this goal has been realised is Parliament'sjudgem nt on the mall r, 
but audit clients also have a role to ass ss our efforts to b the 
public sector auditor of choice. 

In June of 1995 a leller was sent to all the audit clients exc pt 
those where the audit is conducted by a private sector agent on 
behalf of the Auditor-General. That letter asked clients for their 
views as to the ability of The Audit Office to meet their needs. Most 
clients were also asked whether they considered their needs would 
be better met if a private sector auditor was appointed as an agent 
ofthe Auditor-General. (This IaUer question was not asked of about 
thirty clients whose functions were considered to be cor 
government and lent themselves less to audit by a private sector 
agent.) 

Only 2 clients expressed a preference for the engagement of a private 
sector audit firm and those clients have been accommodated. A 
number of respondents spoke positively of The Audit Office while 
the remainder were accepting of existing arrangements. 

Annual Survey 

At the end of 1995 we conducted our annual client survey. As in 
previous years, we used that independently-condu led survey lo 
identify the needs and expectations of Audit Office clients and to 
monitor The Audit Office's level of performance in the delivery of its 
services. The audit client satisfaction rating arising from this year's 
survey was 65%. (This compares to the rating in the previous thre 
years of 64%, 63% and then 66% in 1994.) This survey also indicates 
that 78% of audit clients would choose the Offi e to be the external 
auditor. 

Other conclusions from the survey were: 

• 

• 

• 

Parliamentarians. stakeholders and clients perceiv d that The 
Audit Office had improved ils performan e in recent year a 
well as during Lhe past year. 

Overall. The Audit Office is meeting ils audit clients' needs 
well, wilh 89% commenting lhal they w re "satisfied" thal il 
mel their needs. 

The saUsfa lion index of thos eli nt whose audits are 
performed by private ector firm on b half of the Auditor 
General~ 11 signifi anlly. whil th index of th non- on tract d 
clients increased marginally. 
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• \lthou~h th ffic is n w over ~\ h lmingl arknowl 
,\s tht public.: 'tl'tor "auditor of hoi .. th re i a n 
t ommumt at more stron >ly me of th p rti ular 
impro\ m nts wh1ch hav oec urr d , nd fo u on p ifi 
ar as of und rp rforman 

P • r u r 111 a 11 c c 1 "1 1\ ey ( rite ria 

summ, ry of the urv y r ult hawing how lient. have rated 
th Oflke·~ own, udit t am (a di tin l from our ontracl auditors) 
on c rtain rit ria over the la l 4 ears is shown in the 
a ompanying tlgur . 

igh r, Ung were achieved in re peel of audit skills and Audit 
orne ta!T av ilability to clients. Notable improvements were 
indicated in lient · re pon e to The Audit. Office providing value 
for money. and auditing kills. There is also a good indication 
from client that The Audit Office is taking additional time and 
making con iderable effort to understand clients' business needs. 

The un·ey tabulated eparate results for those clients whose audits 
were conducted by contracted private sector firms on behalf of the 
Auditor-General. Overall, these clients are least satisfied with 
The udit Office' wperformance". Their main concerns are with 
Umeline (the extra time taken to complete the audit due to the 
three party relationship) and effort to understand the client's 
bu mes (due to the arms length relationship The Audit. Office 
ha with the e clients). 

Staff ~ 'iew.\ 

As part of the survey process, Audit Office staff were asked for 
their \iew . Their main comments were as follows: 

• Staff believed that. The Audit Office was generally meeting 
its clients' needs fairly well, given the legislative and 
budgetary constraints within which it was required to 
operate. 

• Main areas where improvement. was noted included an 
increased ability to meet deadlines, increasing 
responsiveness. better understanding of their client's 
business and improvements in the quality of the audit being 
performed. 

• Staff nominated several areas which required attention to 
tmprove the operations and performance of The Audit Office. 
These included low staff morale due to limited career 
opportunities above the Grade 8 level, concerns that the 
audit methodology may not be the best and concerns about 
lack of resources or the wrong staff mix . 



Performance 011 Key Criteria 

Neither Good 
nor Bad 

Effort to understand 
client's organisation 

Communications: 
keeping clients 

lnl'ormed 

Relevant auditing 
experience; skills 

Fairly 
Good 

Very 
Good Excellent 

Timeliness; ability to e 
deliver the service j)!l!!l!!l!~ 

promptly 

Value for money 

Specialist expertise 
in new audit 

methodologies e 

Effort to understand 
client's needs 

Effort to understand 
client's industry 

Availability: 
approachability and 

ease of contact 

Flexibility: ability to 
provide options in 

service 

Confidence in 
quality of work; 

performance 

Cost competitiveness 

• Client's 1995 Rating of Audit Office 
• Client's 1994 Rating of Audit Office 
• lient's 1993 Rating of Audit Office 

lient's 1992 Rating of Audit Office 
* 1992 rating not available 
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I rtl-!rt ss to date can b summari d: 

• fh em r~ing \'it'\\' i that our att 
,\dequ. te but would produ more 
lol U'-'st:d ~r at r attention on the li nl 
1s also - op tor further effi iency gain 
to the m thodology. 

U1odology is 
re ull if il 

· bu in ri ks. There 
U1rough improv ment 

• Th t, k or int grating our information systems audil work 
\\ith finan ial .. udit ha had a omewhat delayed slart but 
con id rable progre ha b n made in the past year. Il will 
not be omplete for ome years due primarily lo the difficulties 
in hiring and holding laff. 

• Our performance audit reports are generally seen as fair and 
ac urate although their quality has sometimes been clouded 
by argument as to whether they comment upon government 
poli y. 

• E~tra audit oncentration ought to be accorded to probity and 
compliance issues but present funding does not allow it. 

• The formation of industry and other specialisation groups 
\\ithin the Office has been well received by clients. Other 
attempt to add value through additional services to clients 
1 re tricted by legislation. 

The Office operates on a break-even philosophy and has gone very 
clo e to achie,'ing this in recent years (when any abnormal credits 
or char e are left aside). Clients pay a fee for attest audit work 
which i de igned to recover slightly more than cost. Performance 
audits are funded to the extent of $500,000 per annum by 
Go,·emment although normal operating costs for the performance 
audit branch amount to approximately $1.5 million. The shortfall 
1 ub idised by fees from attest audit clients as the Office's 
contribution to the Government. 

Effective hourly charge rates for attest audit work have varied little 
0\'er time. When comparative information was last available (in 1994) 
our rate were slightly below the rates tendered by the larger city 
accounting firms. Despite this, our clients do not believe that the 
Office i cost-competitive. 

Our fourth goal was to develop internal systems lo ensure the 
effecti\'e overall operation of the Office. Progress has been as follows: 

• The area of human resource management is governed by public 
senice regulations which are not always conducive lo private 
sector levels of efficiency. Even given that limitation there are 
areas where our progress over ilie last lhree years has been 
slow: 

the implementation of appropriate executive level and 
taff level performance management processes is 

taking con iderable time. and 

ilie development of a workable staff scheduling system is 
not yet complete. at some cost to our efficiency. 



Staff 

Quality 

• Basi financial and manag m nl r porting sy l m ar almost 
in plac bul a limiting factor on furlh r d v lopm nl is lh 
availability of kill d laff. 

• Alll1ough som progress has be n made with inl rna! upporl 
functions, staff consider that lh Compu l r S rvi s. 
Administration and Finance s clions ar not a custom r 
focussed as they might be. 

Slow progress in some of the areas m nlioned abov is, p rhaps , 
related to the relatively low numbers of staff engaged in human 
resource, financial and administration activities . 

Our goal has been to attract and retain the highest quality staff 
who are supported by training and development programs and areer 
opportunities. In terms of progress: 

• We have been able to attract excellent quality graduates in 
recent years but the retention rate is low. 

• Our ability to place high quality staff in adequate numbers at 
the upper levels is restricted by the remuneration we can offer 
(which is considerably less than the private sector) . 

• The lack of career opportunities continues Lo be a frequently­
stated reason for staff departures and is a matter which 
requires further attention. 

• At the executive level we have been successful in attracting a 
small number of high quality recruits from the private sector. 

• For the last two years nominees from The Audit Office for the 
Young Accountant of lhe Year Awards have done well. 

• Our training program has received increased approval from 
staff in lhe last two years. Staff who are studying for the 
Society of Certified Practicising Accountants' CPA Program 
are given considerable support by the Office and achieve a 
higher pass rate than lhe average for that program. 

We aimed to build an organisational culture that embraces quality 
as a core value, and promotes commitment lo excellence and client 
service. Progress can be summarised as follows: 

• Our plans to achieve certification under Australian Quality 
Standards are underway, however lhe deadline of 30 November 
1995 has been put back to lhe second half of 1996. 

• 

• 
• 

Internal reviews indicate lhal the technical quality of our audit 
work has improved over the last three years although lher is 
still room for further improvement. 

During 1995 the Office was awarded for excellence in annual 
reporting. 

While our standard of client service is improving overall, lher 
is still a considerable variance in the standard delivered by 
different audit learns. 
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I )f ()pt.: rations 
1994 1995 

md 
4 452 

44 466 

2 17 
11 10 

ur lud : 

• nting the p opl of ew South Wales 

• c uth ~ rO\ rnment 

• 
• 

111 numb r of or!!anLation and a tivities we audit decreased from 
in 1 4 to 452 in 19 5 Cia ification of these audits was: 

1994 1995 

3 3 

135 132 

177 157 
56 63 
97 97 

Total 468 452 

m chan!:(e wa a decrease in government trading enterprises, 
to the major reform and restructures carried out in early 

5 m re pan e to the new Government's administrative 
n m nt order. 

Th pnn ipal nnce which we provide are: 

• Fman tal report audits 
• P rformance audit 

• 
• 
• 

tal r view /im·e ligations 
R ports to Parliament 

d\'i on a counting tandards/practices 

In add tion. w provide a si Lance in audit related areas such as 
man ial manag m nt. taff and contractor selection, staff training, 

nnauon L hnolo~y and data proces ing. 

I Parh m ntarian and th agencies we audit are provided with 
o r Guarant of nric . Thi set out our policy on client service 

th \ hatch nts can expect from us in terms of the type 
I o rvt to b provtded. How we performed during the 

tho ~tandard I tout in Appendix 9. 



Gary Beer and Alan Soriano from the Administration & Finance Sect/On 

''Overall The Audit Office 
is meeting its clients' 

needs well 
with 89% indicating they were 
satisfied that The Audit Office 

met their need " 

Wl!ndy Egl'lll'.\ from the Adm/11/Stratlllll & /·ina nee Sl'<'twn 
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hn.mt t.tl n ptH'l audits .1n' conductul lot the primary purpose of 
prO\ tdlll!.! '\11 indt'pt:'ncl nt opinion on the nn.mcialrcport prepared 
by t' H lt l.!O\ t rnnwnt a~t ncy. Usually the 11n.mcial report and th 
w Itt opinion an n quin d to bt im lttdLCI in th' <lgc ncy' annual 
r l nt \\'hil'h is pre sentlCI to 1\lrliamcnt. !'he Ofn< e c lso audit the 
.o, ·rnment Fin.uu t tatistics n port. the Tr a urer' Public 

At t ount and tht• t.lt 's on -ohdated Finane!< 1 lalemcnt e-ach 
yt'"\1' .md the r sulttn~ .Htdil opinion i publi ·heel with tho 
d lt'Ulll nts. 

cond objet ti\· of the 11nancial report audit is to reporllo agen y 
mamu,! 'ment on obs n·ation- and recomm ndalions arising from 
the e amination. Information gath red during lh audit often 
•n, bles u.:; to identil)· opporlunille for improving the methods and 
pro ""'es used by management to afeguard resources and provide 
ust>ful finan tal information. 

report on the r ult of each financial audit is usually provided to 
th lini ter r pon ible for lh agency concerned. Finally, the 
results of each financial audit is reported to Parliament. 

Performance audits aim lo determine whether an agency is carrying 
out activitie effectively. economically and efficiently and in 
ompliance with all relevant laws. A performance audit may examine 

all or part of an agency's operations. Some audits consider particular 
ue aero a number of agencies or on a service-wide basis. 

The result of the performance audit are reported to the agency 
head. the responsible Minister and the Treasurer. The response 
from the agency is incorporated into the final report before it goes 
to Parliament. 

The Audit Office also undertakes investigations of allegations of 
erious and substantial waste in terms of the Protected Disclosures 

Act 1994 (the Act Look effect from 1 March 1995). Under the Act, a 
publi official may make a disclosure to the Auditor-General, orally 
or in \Vritin . of erious and substantial waste of public money by 
an authority or an officer of an authority. Under section 38B of the 
Public Fmance and Audit Act. the Auditor-General may conduct an 
audit of the allegation (bul not if it concerns local councils). 

t the time of preparation of this report, The Audit Office has received 
10 disclo ures pursuant to the Protected Disclosures Act 1994. 

A ummary of the results of each financial report audit is included 
in one of the tandard three volumes of the Auditor-General's Annual 
Report to Parliament. 

Of the performance audits there were major reports on: 

• Government Advertising - which concluded that in the run­
up to the March 1995 election there had been a ignifi ant 
increa e in the level of expenditure on publicity campaigns 
and that a number of agencies had breached existing 
Government advertising guidelines. In some cases campaigns 



could hav ·been interpreted as "political" advertising. Great r 
clarity in the aclverlising guid ·lines was recommrncled together 
with the ·stablishm ·nl of an agency adv ·rtising code 
as a means of improving the transparency and aclv •rtising 
pracllc s of future advertising campaigns. The Government 
is currently examining th •se r commendations. 

• Effeclive UUlisalion of School Fa ililies which. while pointing 
lo a numb r of worthwhile inillalives in different parts of the 
Stale, highlighted significant scop for b ·tter utilisalion of 
school premises. The report noted that, if surplus facilili ·s 
could be eliminated, annual savings in running costs alone 
could exceed $7.8 million a year. Improved community us of 
schools was a key theme of the report 

• Joint Operalions in the Education S ctor - which highlight d 
lhe potenlial savings from joint operational arrangements but 
stressed the need for adequate reporting of the financial and 
operational performance of all joint operations and made a 
number of recommendations for improvements to lhe 
management and accountability ofjoinl operations. The report 
included a Guide to Best Practice, which has been well received. 

• Luna Park - which reported that commitments entered into 
and for which the Government is ullimalely liable were likely 
to signifcantly exceed the $44.3 million already incurred by 
the time the report was tabled. The report also exposed a 
number of breakdowns, or circumventions, of basic procedures 
such as lhe failure to undertake a full Environmental Impa t 
Study when preparing the Plan of Management for the Park. 

A preliminary report on Management of the Courts was also tabled 
during the year, as were significant reports on the Proposed Sale of 
the Stale Bank and the M2 Motorway. 

Special reviews or reports concern matters that have arisen in the 
course of our financial audits which are important enough lo be 
drawn to the attention of Parliament. For the year ended 30 
November 1995, special reports were made on: 

(a) Access to Information 
(b) Victims Compensalion Fund 
(c) Accountability and Appropriation of Revenue 
(d) Parliamentary Contributory Superannualion Fund 
(e) Ministerial Involvement in Polilical Party Fund Raising 
(1) Expenditure Incurred by the former Minister for the 

Environment 
(g) Special Expenses Allowances for Parliamentary Member 
(h) Expenditure on Research into Communi ly Con erns 
(l) Qualified Audit Reports 
U) Pre-payments to Comput r Supplier 

Note: (a} , (b) : Annual Report to Pnrliarnenl 1994 Volume 3 
(c) . (d) : Anruw1 Report to Parlinmenl 1995 Volwrw 1 
(e) OJ : Annual Report to T'nrlianwnl 1995 Volume• 2 
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m t t h ·-..t m,\t lt'r-.. h,ui ot n r,usecl in e,1rlier r ports and om 
m r1,ll\t m.\ttt•rs an. rt grettablv. ~till not atislnet ril re olv d . 

F r · mpk. tlw \uditor •t'neral still do ·not h, v an cntitl m nt 
"" ,tom t documtnls or ltr!,tin lt:p:al d ument that ar 

rt'l ,. mt to ,nrdn-. l'arliamt nl ~till does not hav effective control 
ndltur · O\ •OH'rnmcnl ol ta: pa_ er·· fund . (lnde d. 

tht Tn,\sun t: p 'nd d Sl5 million without any I gal 

1 h p t,\l r p rt on hmsterial Involvement in Politi al Party Fund 
1 rstn._ --how-. that th re continue- to be a need for U1e Parliament 

O\ t'rnment - to est, oli -h a I gally valid ode of conduct to 
hmst r · in thts acttvity. 

n w r "' ,,. (0 mdi ates that ilie current checks and balances 
r I tin._ to lmi.,.ter · own e.:-.:penditures appear to be inadequate. 

Th r"p rt on E. :penditure on Re earch into Community Concerns 
{h). to._ •ther \\ith the 1995 Special Audit on Government. Advertising 
dt.,.cu-;-.. d above. ident1fie expenditures which are of a party 
p liti , 1 nature and which were thus inappropriately borne by the 
ta: pay 'r. 

\\ ith resp ct to pa t pecial reports. the former Government. and 
urrent Gm·ernment responded to concerns raised in the 1994 

p i I report about Government Financing Schemes with High 
udtt Ri k. And the Government is examining ways to address 

dtfh ullle identified this year affecting the Victims Compensation 
Fund. 

In addition to meeting obligations to report to Parliament. The Audit 
Ofltce a 1 ted Parliament by making submissions to and appearing 
b ore Parliamentary Committees. During the year such assistance 
wa~ prmided to the following: 

• Public counts Committee 
- Inquiry into Annual Reporting 
- Inquiry into the Peer Review of the Auditor-General's Office 

• Public Bodie Review Committee Inquiry into Annual 
Reporting 

• Legi lati\ e Council Standing Committee on Parliamentary 
Privileg and Ethics Inquuy into a Draft Code of Conduct for 

I mb r of the Legi lative Council. 

In t rm of taff number . or audit clients or total revenues audited, 
Th Audit Office i a large audit practice. It is natural, therefore, 
that indrvidual taff participate in the development. of the 
a counting/auditing profession. During the year. the Office was 
r pr nted on a number of committees. (See Appendix 6.) 

udlt Offl e assisted the ew South Wales Government through 
part! lpatlon 111 the Treasury review of the Public Finance and Audit. 

t I c 3. in th Trea ur r·s Advisory Panel meetings and in ad 
on ullatton and workmg parties stablished by Treasury. 



Lisa Myers, Jonathon Whitfield and RahoLII Ray from th e StrLICtllred Finance 
and Treasllry A Lid it Grollp 

''We aim to build an 
organisational culture 
that embraces quality 

as a core value, and promotes 
commitment to excellence 

and client service" 

~ lnc/n•n· Cnce our u 111/ll' l' o/lh<' ' >'ounJ.: A ccountant of 
tht' )(·ar All'ard - (iol '<' rnmt·nt and , l cad<'flllll 
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The clo er ollaborc tion b tween Audit Offices should provide 
"l!?;nihcanl benel1t to Th Audit Office of New South Wales and to 
1t · audit client and to the Parliament. It will, when fully developed, 
allow tail of lhi Office to acces efficiently and economically 
e)..--perti e and kill a\'ailable in any of lhe seven other Audit Offices 
in Au tralia and ew Zealand. 

During the year lhe Deputy Auditor-General, Mr Jim Mitchell, took 
part in the peer review of the Western Australian Audit Office with 

partner from Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. 

Finally, the Office continued to respond to material from the 
Accounting Standards Board and to make submissions to the 
. u tralian Accounting Research Foundation. 

A number of reviews were undertaken of the Office's operations. 
The follo\\in were the major ones: 

• Review of the audit of Sydney University. 

• Internal review of financial audit quality. 

• Review of support functions. 

• Internal audit. 

• Client urvey. 

Cooper & Lybrand were engaged to perform a quality review of The 
Audit Office' audit approach and working papers in respect of the 
audit of the University of Sydney for lhe year ended 31 December 
1994. Their procedures included involvement with the client and 
The Audit Office at the planning stage to ensure timely identification 
of audit i ue . and a review of audit files at the conclusion of the 
audit as a check of the quality and sufficiency of working papers 
and to ensure that all planning issues were adequately addressed 
during the course of the audit. Their review produced satisfactory 
conclu ions. 

Our r gular cycle of internal reviews of selected financial audits 
indicated ontinued improvements in nearly all areas. One 
un ali factory feature was that none of the operational branches 
had undertaken quality assurance reviews of the selected audits. 



Changes in 
Legislation and 
Judicial Decisions 

Office Visitors 

Overseas Visits 

Other a p 'cls of concern rclat d lo non complian<'c with solllc 
matter of orne policy or Jal ·ness in unci ·rlaking some actions. 
Acldllional wrllt n guidance has b n arranged tog th r with an 
opportunity for staff to eli cu s the findings. 

In April 1995 a consullanl was engaged to review the suppo1 t 
functions within the Offi e to identify ar as wh re il might b' 
possible to achiev beller servi e deliv ry. The review indicated a 
need to put in place a programme ofservi improvem nlthroughoul 
the Office to ensure that op rational units ar ~ ffecliv ly s rviced. 
As a result. internal service units prepared internal client service 
plans selling ou l the service standards which lh y would m cl. 

The report on the internal audit of the Office is reproduced in full 
as Appendix 10. Il encompasses all of the mallers recommend d 
for inclusion by the Public Accounts Commillee in their report on 
Internal Audit in lhe New South Wales Public Sector. 

As in past years, lhe Office commissioned a client survey, the results 
of which are detailed earlier. 

In addition, in November 1994 the Public Accounts Committee 
commenced lhe review of The Audit Office to be conducted every 
lhree years pursuant to seclion 48A of the Public Finance and Audil 
Act 1983 by appointing the reviewer. At the dale of this report the 
results of the peer review have not been tabled in Parliament 

On 1 March 1995 the Protected Disclosures Act 1994 amended the 
Public Finance and AuditAcl1983 by allowing a public official within 
lhis Act to complain to lhe Auditor-General (whether orally or in 
writing) that public money has been seriously and substantially 
wasted by an authority or an officer of an authority not being a 
local government body. When a public official makes such a 
complaint the Auditor-General may conduct an audit. 

On 1 September 1995 the Public Finance and Audit Regulation 
1994 was repealed and the Public Finance and Audit (General) 
Regulation 1995 carne into effect. The new regulation contained 
only minor changes and consequently had liUle impact on the office. 
The change was made in connection with the staged repeal of 
subordinate legislation under the Subordinate Legislation Act 1989. 

In addition, a number of agencies were added to Schedule 2 and 
3 of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983, enabling the Auditor 
General to inspect and audit lheir records and accounts. 

Important legal opinions affecting the operation of the Office ar 
reproduced in appendices to lhe Auditor-General's annual report 
to Parliament 

During the year the Office was visited by delegations representing 
public service organisations from the Philippines, Taiwan, Unit d 
Kingdom, Republi of South Africa and th Republi of Kor a. 

No overseas trip were undertak n during th y ar by offl r or 
employees. 
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In tt nn.., ol hnancial n~k the cr ale~ t dang r is that lh m e may 
liT b) ~~--umc , n unqua!ttkd audit opinion thus mi 1 acting 
l u·li, mtnt ,md others c.lbout the a!Tairs f the nlity. It might al o 
k.ld to ,1 sutTessful chum lor damages brought b ~ party which 
rdi ·d on th.ll opm10n . Whil it i' .ov rnm nt policy that one 
!.! )\"t'nllllt nt organi ·.1tion hall not sue, noth r. that cour e of ction 
may still b open to a non gO\·ennn nt organi alion. 

The Ilk attempt to mod rat th ri k by using a program of 
internal and temal quality r vi w m nlioned earlier. The Office 
carrie~ no prole · tonal liability in uranc but officers ar covered 
by a tate ind mnity gain t laim not involving negligence. 

ther ri · ks ag, m t wht h U1e Office does insure include workers 
amp n ·auon. motor vehicle . property and public liability. 

During l99...J: -95 The Audit Office engaged 10 consultants at a total 
co -t of 1 7.1 2. There were no consultancies in excess of$30,000 
for a ingl proje t. 

The Office continued to promote the use of recycling bins through 
pex u lralia Pty Ltd which makes a donation to the Westmead 

Cluldren Ho pi tal for each tonne of paper collected. The separation 
of wa te into paper and other "wet waste" assists in maintaining a 
leaner environment. but also results in reduced waste disposal 

co t and con equently lower operating costs to the Office. 

Empty toner cart..ridges from the Office's laser printers and facsimile 
rna hine are also recycled through Canon Australia in an attempt 
to reduce environmental hazards . 



''I · h t IS not w at we 
say or declare 

about ourselves, 
but what others , particula rly our 

clients , say about us and the qu a lity 
of our work and ervice" 

Chrts !Jowdlcr anti f . t .\ll l'cndtda from the• /'erform<lll< ,. 

A utltl /Jranch 
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tl\t'tllh rIll~)~ tht Publit tTounts ommitll'l appointe! the 
n \'t " ·r whit h. tttHkr lht• Public FinatH'l' ,md udit Act 1983 is to 
t \llllll" thl' ,ntdilitH~ pr,\t'ttCl'S ,\ltd st,mdarcls or the Auctltor 

I llt'l\ll. \s lll\.'lltiOtH d last\ l'<lr. ,\pro\ ision or !:;>'350.000 was made 
I trliclnwnt to lund then·' tl'\\. 

The r 'tl \\'t r is a p.uwl of p ·rsons. and to ,1. si 't them. a number of 
uountine. hnns and a former uditor G<:neml for South Au tralia 

w r · <t::.k d toe aminl particular m,ttter whi h. together, covered 
most of the opu, lions ol the 011ke. 

n l ;\larch 19q . the n?Yiewer provided a copy of its intended 
r port but it is not yet m·ailable for tabling. It should be tabled 
befor' ;\l,ly 199 . 

This is the hrst time that the Auditor-General's standards and lhe 
Otlt<.:e has been re\iewed under this legislation, and some lessons 
for future re,iew can be learned from it. 

he re,iew of the Public Finance and Audit Act that commenced 
some time a~o continues. The intention of this review is to ensure 
that the Act reflects the ignificant practical advances in financial 
< countability and reporting lhat have occurred under past and 
present GO\·ernments and Treasurers. 

In pre entalwn at occasions organised by the Public Accounts 
ommtltee, in e\idence to other relevant Parliamentary Committees, 

in submi ion to the Government (in the context of its review of 
le i lation) and in occasional addresses, lhe Auditor-General has 
ar!!;ued the ca e that agencies should be encouraged to use 
performance indicators to report their achievements - and their 
mistake . The arne i sue has been raised wilh the reviewer which 
i re\iewing The Audit Office. 

Although accrual. consolidated accounting is an achievement of 
orne importance. accounting for money and assets does not make 

agencie a countable for their outputs and outcomes, in terms of 
better policing. education. health and so on. 

There i some ign that others share the view that performance 
reporting is important. but at this stage there is insufficient 
momentum to cause Government to initiate a program requiring 
agencies to improve their reporting on performance. The area thus 
remains a offering the most important means available to improve 
accountability in the public sector. 

The three year corporate plan ending in 1995 was based on a theme 
of improving public sector performance by making the audit more 
relevant to the clients' re ponsibilities. 



Focus on Staff 

Office Funding 

Public Sector 
Restructuring 

Structured 
Financing 

l<.-arlier in l11is annwd report, tlw details or clients' t~ssessm ·nt of' 
the Offi<'e is proviclecl. Clients take' the view that the Office lws 
improved ov r the last triennium. Nearly 95CYcJ or surveyed Cli('lltS 
would se k Office advice on publics dor <wcounting and reporting 
and nearly 78% would choose tht' orne. as then auditor. 

On the other hand, the lowest 4 deciles of clients surveyed last year 
gave the Office a bare pass/failure in its work. Much remains 
to lift our performance so that mor of our audit clients share the 
view of the upper 4 deciles which assess the orne 's work as 
excellenl. 

A new corporate plan for the Office, to cover the period from end 
1995 to end 1999, is being developed. One of ils emphases will be 
the need for the Office beller to help ils staff so that they can more 
closely meet the expectations of our clients. Ess ntial issues such 
as more accurate staff assessment. improved capacity to reward 
achievement. and an enterprise agreement, if the union movement 
allows, are planned to be completed by 1996. 

There is still no view on the appropriate long term level of funding 
for performance audits. The previous Government indicated that it 
would examine this when the review of the Office (discussed above) 
was completed. 

Performance audits continue Lo provide annual opportunities for 
savings which, on conservative estimates, equate to several Urnes 
annual costs of performance audits. Although savings are only one 
factor to assess performance audits, they are more than paying for 
their costs on this single criterion. 

The Administrative Arrangements changes made by the Government 
following its appointment in 1995 were accommodated in the 1994 
95 audits although these changes did inevitably add to the costs 
incurred by agencies in completing their financial statements and 
by the Office. They also led to delays in the process such that the 
Public Accounts and Consolidated Financial Statements were 
released later than had been planned. 

The Office is continuing Lo liaise with Governm nl agencies on lh 
further changes expected in 1996 for the Government's electricity 
and rail transport enlit.ies. Th se changes increas audit risk 
sometimes significantly- because of disruptions to existing systems 
of control and because agencies' experi need personnel lend to se k 
other employment when there is uncertainty about their futur 
positions. 

Since 1992 this Office has had to grapple with a larg number of 
"structured financing arrangem nts", often r lat d to infrastmcturc 
deals. The Office has be n working with accounting firms in 
d v loping it approach on th se stru Lured Bnancing deals and has 
been working with the accounting profession on new accounting 
standards that allow more certain treatment of thes arrangements. . 
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per ti mal 
I inancial \udit 

BrandlL 

Pl:rforman e udit 
Branch 

r· o a 111 at i o 11 a n d lVI a 11 a g c n1 en t 

1994 1995 

Branch Size 
hn.ull i 11 audit ,...t.1ff 143 158 
l'erlonnance .1ucht -;t.11f l 19 
Inli.n·m~uion s~ stt m <.Hldtt · ta!T 11 10 
I 1. nning rl'st .trch , nd m<.magement ~tafT 35 38 

--------~2~0~5----------2-2~5~ 

Employment of Wo m en 
,rade l 0 .tnd .tbove 3.0°/0 

2 .2% 

Nil 

1.8% 
32.0% 

Nil 

The three Operational udit Branche employed 158 people as at 
30 overnb r 1995. The primary functions of these branches are: 

• Undertaking financial report audits of government agencies 
• PrO\i ion of ad\i e to clients on audit related matters 
• i ~ ting \\ith performance audits 

l\lore than 5% of branch staff are professionally qualified or 
underta!Gng tudies. and all have been trained in the use of the 
late t audit methodology and related technology. 

FollO\\ing a period of fairly rapid expansion in 1994, the past year 
ha been one of continued moderate growth with the Branch 
e.'\.--panding it staffing base from 16 to 19. The Branch has alsb 
continued its practice of malting use of consultants in specialised 
area to upplement its base of knowledge and expertise. 

i:e of Performance Audit Projects 

Average (,\lonths) 

A\·erage Costs ( J 

NSW 
AO 

10.26 
150.730 

Australian 
Average 

13.92 
234.585 

Total 
Average 

13.22 
221,799 

The table above has been compiled using statistics from 3 Australian 
audit offices and 5 intemational audit offices. These figures give a 
compati on of average number of months taken per performance 
audit and the average costs per audit. It indicates, in general, that 
our performance audits take less time and are lower in cost . 

Following the uccess of the Guide to Effective Fraud Control which 
the Branch published during 1994, the Branch has introduced an 
initiative to produce similar types of"best practice" material as part 
of. or a a corollary to. other performance audits. 

The past year saw a Guide to Best Practice included as part of the 
performance audit on Joint Operations in the Education Sector. It is 
expected that guides in several other areas will be produced during 
1996. 



tructurc 

Assi~tant Auditnr-(;encral 
t Pcrfurman('C Audit\ l 

Pl•rlilflnancc Audit~ 

Members of the 
Executive 

Key to Post 
Nominals 

~~si~tant Audilur-Generul 
(J'olicy. Rl>Sran·h 
nnd Managemcntl 

Corporate S~n·ircs 

Personnel, 
Secretariat, 

Finance, 
Administration, 

Support Services, 
Records 

Policy, 
Planning, 

Professional Development, 
Research, 
Library, 

EEO 

I 
DP Development 
DP Operations 

Auditor-General 

"' Internal Audit 

A~~istant 
Audltor-Gcncrul 

tOJll'l'ation~) .~ Po~itiun~ 

J'<'lnand:d Audits lnt'ormatlon Sy~h~lt~ Audit 

* The Internal Auditor is 
empowered to approach 
any member of the Internal 
Audit Committee regarding 
any concern~ the auditor 
may have. 

TONY HARRIS BA B.Ec MBA F'CPA F'AIM 

Deputy Auditor-General 
JIM MITCHE LL FCPA 

Assistant Auditor-General 
(Policy, Research and 
Management) 
GEOFF OLIVER FCPA 

Assistant Auditor-General 
(Performance Audits) 
TOM JAMBRICH B.Ec FCPA ARMIT ACA 

Assistant Auditors-General 
(Operations) 
ERIC LUMLEY FCPA 

PHIL THOMAS B Comm ACA 

TONY WIUTFIELD B.Comm F'CA 

ACA 
ARM IT 
BA 

Associate of the inslilule of Chartered Ac ounlanl in Australia 
Associate of the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology 
Bachelor of Arts 

B.Ec 
B.Comm 
F'AlM 
FCA 
FCPA 
MBA 

Bachelor of Economics 
Bachelor of Commerce 
Fellow of the Australian In litule of Management 
Fellow of the lnslilute of Chartered Accountants in Au Lralia 
Fellow of the Australian Society of Certified Practising Ac ountanls 
Master of Business Administration 

. 
" " c 
~ 

3<J 



. 
"' 

, 
/ 

lnt lrllt.ltitln 
\udir 

P lie . . R •arch 
and Managem nt 
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it( In )!'ll\,llion \ slt'ms Audit Branch employed 10 Inrormatlon 
\ st ms Auditors .tt ) ear end and h<lS the l'ollO\ ing prime ry 

ru net ions: 

• \ ..... stst ltl st ,ntdit to tdcnttl)' omput r related risl and 
de\ tlop approprialt r sponsc . 

• E\•,\luatc rt'lt' ,1nt compu tt: r control to a' ov rall 
r •li,lbilit) of om put r pro ing environment . 

• Ev,llu,lle relennll ompul r control to a overall 
n: liabililv of the tran action and bal nc processed and 
maint::uned by the appli alion . 

• Den: lop appropriat ompu t r a i led audit techniques lo 
en un• audit procedure are conducted in the most efficient 
and effective manner. 

• lient on information y terns controls related matters . 

Durin~ I 5 the Information Sy terns Audit Branch: 

• dopted a new Information Systems Audit Methodology. 

• pgraded the technical training program for all Information 
y tern udit taff. 

• Introduced a part-lime program for selected attest auditors to 
mtegrate attest audit and information systems audit work. 

The Branch employed 38 people at the end of the year. This number 
wa pread across four basic units: Administration and Finance, 
Policy and Research, Computer Services and Professional 
De\ elopment. 

The Administration and Finance Section carries out the corporate 
en'ice function of the Office. This includes the many human 

re ource management activities, financial and payroll 
admmi tration. records management, purchasing, motor vehicle 
fleet. property and risk management, and the provision of clerical 
upport and secretarial services. 

The Branch plays an advisory and development role through its 
Policy and Research Section. This Section has a role in improving 
public ector accountability by making pro-active recommendations 
ba ed on research and by responding lo Government initiatives. 
The Section also facilitates the provision of high-quality, cost­
effecti\ e audit services by keeping staff aware of trends in 
accounting and auditing practices, through the development of 
audit methodologies. strategic planning and by seeking ways of 
improving the auditing service. 

The Computer Services Section is responsible for the overall delivery 
of a range of computing services and systems support, including 
th management and maintenance of the Office's in-house 
computer systems. portable computers and associated networks 
and the provision of technical and user support. The Section also 
in Jude a Sy terns Development area which is responsible for the 
development and maintenance of application systems for the Office, 
the training of taff in the u e of these systems, and the provision 
of a con ultancy ervice to external clients. 



Industrial 
Relations 

Management 
Improvement 

Equal Employment 
Opportunity 

The Pro~ sional Development Unit r views the skill ne cis across 
th Office and clev lop , ronclucls and evaluat s a wid range oJ 
pro~ sional d v lopm nt rours ov•ring both the management 
and auditing skills of staff. 

Considerable ffort was expended by lh En t rpri Agr em en t 
Committee during th year to dev lop a draft do um nt for 
presentation lo staff. M lings were held regularly during th y ar 
and most of the key issues affecting working ondilions w re 
discussed and appropriate clauses prepared. Th hang in 
government and the impact of the Crown Employe s (Public Sector 
Salaries 1995) Award combined to pre lucie the finalisalion of 
negotiations by the end of the reporting period. Th Committe 
will continue to meet in 1996 and il is hoped that a formula can b 
reached within the next few months that will permit the Office to 
adopt more flexible conditions and to provide staff with some of 
the necessary incentives to help ensure the efficient, effective and 
economical operation of the Office. 

A number of significant initiatives were commenced or continued 
during the past year, including: 

• To make the new performance management system effective 
(introduced late in 1994) all Office staff underwent training 
during 1995. 

• Work continued during the year on evaluating how the Office 
was perceived by its clients, and the design of specific policies 
and practices which would effect an improvement in this area. 

• During the year a new financial management information 
system (FMIS) was fully implemented, with both invoice and 
cheque generation running live by year's end. 

• A computerised human resource management information 
system was partly implemented. It is lo provide management 
with personnel data in a cost -effective manner. 

Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) at The Audit Office is aimed 
at improving the opportunities of all employees. A key ongoing 
objective is to ensure that EEO responsibilities are accepted by all 
managers and that EEO becomes part of management culture rather 
than being seen as a centralised function. 

Key achievements in 1995 were: 

• The implementation of the Disability Plan: 

• 

People with disabilities expressed 100% atisfaclion with 
the majority of outcomes from the Plan; 

- The Office created a 12 month probationary position for a 
person with disability, and provided a three week work 
experience placement for a person with a disability. 

- Projects oullined in Appendix 13 were ompleted. 

Continued employment of a significant proportion of peopl 
from non-English speaking background (NESS) at alll vel 
of the organisation, and support to NESS taff in undertaking 
extensive training in ommunication kills lo improv both 
their promotional opportunilie and their onlribulion to 
the om e. 
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ltn!!rt"" on kt\ stratee,ils lhm1 the previous 'e. r were: 

• b.nsw ine, FF issues ,\re .Hidn'ss{ ct in lhl ongoing cnl rpt·i' 
,\~rtement process . 

• Introducing tlc iblt' work pr.H ti anct family fri nclly 
initi.uive~ - stall'c:nvaremss mi eel b_ eli tribuUon ofbrochur 
publie,\tlon of. rticlc sin EEO new Jetter and acldr ing; i ue 
in sE m 't'ting: bulk or project commen cl in Novemb r 1995. 

• Ensuring women arc attracted to and r lain d at higher grades 
- project not commen ed until Octob r 1995; a woman has 
been , ppointecl to the 0111 e' SES. 

• Preventing age dt crimination - awareness raising sessions 
oll'ertd to staiT and arti le included in EEO newsletter, but 
a!?,e discrimination ha not yet been identified as a major area 
of concern by central poli -making government bodies. 

l"ey ~trategie in 1996 include: 

• Implementin~ flexible work practices and family friendly 
initiati,·e under the new Framework Agreement with more 
proa live as istance from the Public Employment Office. 

• Introducing a comprehensive Women's Development Strategy. 

• ddre ing the fact that Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
people are eemingly not represented at the Office by 
implementing a comprehensive Aboriginal Employment 
Strategy which aims to employ 2% Aboriginal staff by the year 
2000. 

• Inclusion of EEO into the corporate plan. 

The introduction of key EEO accountabilities into SES performance 
agreement will provide the framework for achieving all the above 

trategie . 



Maria Spnggins discussing Information Syslems A udil 
requiremenls wilh Philip Poon 

''Our clients' needs are 
changing and they 

require an auditor who has 
up- to-date kn owl edge and can ass ist 

them in adopting bes t practices" . 
~ 
c 
c .. 
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Employes 

Tot,ll st,!ll .lt y ar nd 

'nior E. t cutin stdif at year end 

Employt co ' l a~ 0 o total op rating e.:pendilur 

t.lff t u rno,· r 

Training 

1994 

205 

21 

65.4% 

13.8% 

1995 

225 

26 

69.3% 

15.5% 

10 14 

The table below (T ble of Starr umber . Gains and Losses) shows 
. 75 in rea e in tali numbers at year end over the previous 

year. Th1 · 1 largely attributable lo the continued growth of the 
OperatiOnal (Finan ial) Audit Branches. This increase is aimed at 
minim1 mg the need for temporary staff during future busy periods. 

Sta1T tumo,·er ( ee graph) increased over this period from 13.8% to 
15 5o/o Tht increa e can be attributed to the growth in job 
opportuniUe available to qualified accountants during the past 12 
month . 

In addition to the permanent staff. it was also necessary in 1995 to 
hire over 4:0 temporary staff at peak work times to undertake short­
term audit projects. 

Total salaries and allowances paid to slaff during lhe year was 
S1l mllhon (S10.9m in 1993-94). 

The effort to attract female applicants to vacancies for Senior 
Management positions continued and was rewarded with the first 
female appointment to the Office's Senior Executive Service. 

Table of Staff 'umbers, Gains and Losses 

Staff* 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 
-91•• -92 -93 -94 -95 

Number employed: 
a at 1 July 194 
a at 1 December 189 179 192 205 
Losses: 
Retirements 4 1 5 5 Nil 
Re ignations 21 15 15 18 22 
Move to other 
departments 9 5 5 5 ll 
Deceased 1 
Redundancies 1 
Gains: 
Public Service 3 1 2 7 11 
(other departments) 

Outside Public Service 26 10 36 34 44 
Number employed: 
a at 30. ovember 189 179 192 205 225 

.. 711f!Sejigu.r arejorthe 17 roonlhsjrom I July 1990 lD30 NOIJI?rTiher 1991. 



Staff" Turnover (stafl' /os .H's " ·' % of staff 1/umbers at year t!llll) 

Note : *Tir e 1991 reporting p eriod covered 17 montlr i. Th e p en ·entuge .~fro wn uhot•e 
represents a 12 month equit•ulent of staff turno ver tluring that p eriod. 

Staff by Category at Year End 

1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 
-91** -92 -93 -94 -95 

Senior Executives• 22 21 24 21 26 
Audit Staff 140 133 138 155 168 
DP Support Staff 8 8 11 10 9 
Adminis tra tive Sta ff 19 17 19 19 22 

Total Slaff • 
a s a l 30 November 189 179 192 205 225 

Notes . • Excludes Auditor-General. 
•• 111ese jlgures are jar the 17 months from 1 July 1990 to 30 November 1991. 
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Durin · the year 1 promotional audit positions (most with multiple 
'a ancie ) wer adverti d throughout the Public Service and the 
pre The ub equent selection action resulted in 63 promotional 
po ilion bein filled. of whi h 38 were from within the Office. 

Four Semor Executive Service (SES) positions were advertised 
re ulung in 3 external and 1 internal appointments. 

'ine promotional non-audit positions were also filled during the 
year of which 3 were from within the Office. 

During 1995 the Structured Training Program was reviewed and 
re\i ed following consultation with management and staff. The 
program includes technical, management development and 
computer courses. The courses were planned to give staff the skills 
and expertise required to provide professional service and advice 
to our clients. 

The training program for audit staff recruited at the graduate level 
wa re\i ed and implemented. Relevant and timely training was 
pro,ided by this varied program. 

Training during the year came from internal and external 
cour e . Consultants were used where appropriate to provide 
in house training as subject matter experts. 

Expenditure on external and consultant run courses and specialist 
training support was $163,980. 

Training amounted to 2,962 days. an average of 14 days per person. 

The Office continued to support staff undertaking professional 
tudie . The support provided was in the form of time off to attend 

lecture . tudy and to sit for examinations. Full financial assistance 
for fir t degree. CPA and PY studies and up to 75% reimbursement 
for relevant second and higher degree studies was provided. 

During the year. taff undertaking these studies were reimbursed a 
total of $29 754. In additlon to the 2,962 training days. study lime 
and pe 1al leave totalling 437.5 days was provided to staff for 
attendance at lecture . private study and for undertaking 
xamination . 



Performance 
Mangement 

Management of 
Leave 

Secondments and 
Staff Exchanges 

Occupational 
Health and Safety 

Social and 
Sporting Activities 

Th Offir inlrocluc d a new performance management syst<'lll for 
taff b low SES I vel I at in 1994. 

The initial results from training in Lhe new syst m wer highly 
encouraging. Workplans wer gen rally completed in acrorclanc with 
Lhe guidelines and positive feedback was obtained from staff. This 
training was followed-up with further skills traininp; in couns !ling 
techniques which will continue early in th new year. 

An average of 5.0 clays sick leave per staff member was taken 
during Lhe year compared Lo 4. 7 days for the previous year. This 
marginal increase can be mainly aUribuLecl Lo th s ver 'flu virus 
LhaL hit Sydney during Lhe year. 

Leave without pay was approved for a variety of reasons including 
full-time study and travel. 

One secondmenl of an operational staff member to another State 
Government agency was terminated late in Lhe year with Lhe officer 
returning to his former position. 

One officer who had been on exchange with the Audit Commission 
for Local Authorities and National Health Service for England and 
Wales ended his Lwo-year secondment during Lhe year and returned 
to a new position with the Office. An officer from the UK Audit 
Commission commenced a 15-month second men t with th 
Performance Audit Branch of the Office early in Lhe year. 

The promotion of health and safety issues al work continued in 
1995, with regular publication in staff newsleUers of articles on ye 
care, avoiding back pain, dietary habits and coping with slres , 
together with the inclusion of sessions on these issues in indu tion 
courses. The success of Lhis program was in part reflected in no 
time being lost due to accidents at work during Lhe year. In addition 
a comprehensive medical examination/executive fitness program 
for selected staff, as undertaken in previous years, has been 
scheduled for 1996. 

Specific training in emergency/evacuation procedures for nominated 
staff al one location was undertaken during Lhe year. Officers aL the 
other two sites are Lo be trained early in Lhe new year. 

The Audit Office Recreation Club continued to promote interaction 
amongst staff by organising a wide range of social, sporlinp; and 
recreational activities throughout the year. The Office also field d 
Learns in the Summer Touch al Lun h touch football competition 
and Lhe Corporate Cup running comp tilion. 
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p~rating R ult 

lncom 

n1mentary on Financial Re ults 

Op rating Results 

r H .\I mt·omt 

Balance Sheet 

T l.:ll \s" •ts 

lt umubted funds 

Analytics 

(d Itt i ncyl 

peratin~ result to total incom 

u rrent ratw 

\s--et turnov r 

1994 

($'000) 

20.1 

2.077 

11.239 

8.383 

10.3% 

3.3 

4.7 

1995 

($'000) 

19,712 

(875) 

13,611 

7 ,438 

(4.4%) 

3.0 

4.4 

The Of!lce follow a policy aimed at achieving a "break-even" position 
O\ er the medium term. The operating deficiency this year needs to 
b re\iewed \\ith the following in mind: 

• The ·ignificant abnormal item from superannuation brought 
about by a imilar reduction in the reserve account of the 
State Superannuation Fund accounted for $0.8 million (92%) 
of the operating deficit. Without this abnormal item, the 
operating decifiency would have been $0.1million. 

• Charge out rates for audit fees were not increased for 1994-
95 and co t increases in the main were able to be absorbed. 
It i not expected that charge out rates can be kept at the 
arne le\·els for 1995-96 because substantial cost increases 

have now been absorbed since 1992. 

• The e:-...-panded level of the performance audit function during 
1994-95 was funded within the existing financial capacity. 
Thi is equivalent of a dividend to the Government of some 
S 1 million per year. 

• The completion of an internal computer network within the 
Office and upgrading of notebook computers during the year 
required increased expenditure on hardware, software and 
training costs. The additional network equipment and notebook 
computers increased depreciation costs by $0.2 million. 

The main income of the Office is audit fees earned. Overall, income 
from audit fees increased over 1993-94 by 5.2% or $0.85 million to 

17.1 million. fncluded was $0. 7million for time spent on audits with 
a finan ial year end after 30 ovember 1995. In addition. audit fees of 

0.8 million were recovered for audits relating to the previous year . 

The Increa e in audit fee income was mainly due to new audits 
and change to audits following the administrative restructuring 
with the change in Government in March 1995. 

Contributions by Government decreased by $0.75 million due 
mainly to the non-recurring cost of the review of the sale of the 
State Bank m the previous year. The contribution towards costs 
a so iated with the Report to Parliament increased by $0.3 million. 

Oth r major items of income were $0.4 million from Treasury for 
·A c: ptance of Departmental Liability by the Crown" of the long 

rvice leave liability for the Offic and $0.4 million relating to the 



Expenditure 

Balance Sheet 
Position 

Future Operating 
Results 

recov ry of osls as o ialed wllh laff on condm nt tog 'lh ~r 
wit.h fees for informat.Jon sy t.em audils ancl oth •r rev! w . 

The it.em of abnormal exp nse $0.8 million in 19 4 95 r fleets 
t.he increase in t.he superannuat.ion liabilit.y following t.he lat 'SI 

Triennial Review and represent.s a reduclion in t.h surplus in lhc 
reserve account. for t.he St.at.e Superannuat.ion Fund h ld al lh 
Slate Aulhorilies Superannualion Board. 

The largest expenditure it.em is salari s and relaled xpens s. 
During the year salary cosls increased by 3% from July 1995 
together with a full year effect. of the 3% from November 1994 for 
staff covered by Public Sect.or Awards. For Senior Executive St.aff. 
award increases of 4% were paid from 0 Lober 1995. Additional 
costs relating to lhe employment. of temporary slaff, especially 
during the June to November work peak, were also mel during 
the year. 

Contract audit fee payments decreased by $0.4 million to $2.2 
million. The loss of the Slate Bank Audit which was part.ially 
contracted plus lhe decision to withdraw two Area Heallh Service 
audits from contract were the main reasons for the decrease. 

The other major item of expense in 1994-95 related to fees for 
services rendered of $1.5 million, including $0.5 million for 
temporary staff to meet peak work commitments. 

The operating deficiency of $0.9 million after an abnormal 
adjustment for superannuation, is mainly reflected in the balance 
sheet by a reduction in the Overfunded Superannuation item in 
Non-Current Assets. 

In compliance with Accounting Standard AAS30 a provision of 
$3.6 million has been established for long service leave due lo 
Office staff. Because the liability is assumed by lhe Crown, an 
offsetting asset of $3.6 million has also been raised. 

Plant, Equipment and Furniture increased by $0.6 million following 
the acquisition of compuler equipment and was offset. partly by 
the disposal of obsolete equipment. $0.3 million and additional 
depreciation of $0.2 million. 

Accounts payable and accruals decreased by $0.4 million while lhe 
provision for annual leave increased by $0.2 million. There was also 
a reduction of $0.2 million in provisions for superannuation. 

Preliminary financial projections for the next 4 years are, al this 
stage, affected by the following: 

• The proposed reslruct.urtng of the Eleclricity generation and 
dislribulion agencies and the as yet. unknown effe ls on audit 
requirement.s. 

• The possible restruct.ure of other government. slalu lory 
aulhorit.ies which may result. in addllional audit. 
responsibili lies. 
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P~:rt lrmJnce 
gain t Budg 

• '1 h st,ltus of s hool , udit~ L 'till unr lv d and thi ould 
h;.n t ,111 on'rwh lming imp. ton future re our e requir m nl 
ol the file 

• n th' co-t id there ha b en , ddilional taff r source 
requiremt"nt involved in p, nding th performance audit 
op ration.;; \\ithout comp n ating r venue at lhi tage. 

Th follo\\ing tabl cover th tlnancial y ar to 30 November each 
year. Th 1 4- 5 budg t ' a th fir t budget approved for that. 
year and ther w re no ub qu nt material adjustments. 

Income 
Aud1t Fee 
ContributiOn by Government: 
- Co t of Report to Parliament 
- Special udit 
- Re\iew of Annual Reports 
Intere t Income 
Other Income 

Expenditure 
Salarte . Allowances 
Pa)TOll Tax 
StaffTraining (excluding salartes) 
Employee Leave and Retirement 
Superannuation 
Contract Audit Fees 
Fee for Senices Rendered 
Rent and Cleaning 
Travelling 
Depreciation 
Other Expenses 

Operating Surplus/{Deficiency) 
before Abnormal Item 

Abnormal Item -
Superannuation Funding 

Operating Surplus/{Deficiency) 

1994-95 1994-95 1995-96 
Budget 

$ ' 000 

16,890 

750 
500 

30 
120 
360 

18,650 

11,680 
720 
550 
340 
250 

2,480 
575 
725 
300 
545 
960 

19,125 

(475) 

( 475) 

Actual 
$'000 

17,089 

1.042 
550 

30 
179 
822 

Budget 
$'000 

18,150 

1,000 
500 
30 

180 
870 

19,712 20,730 

11,764 
748 
311 
682 
119 

2,231 
1,458 

720 
188 
567 
992 

12,960 
820 
370 
600 
200 

2,260 
840 
730 
250 
635 

1,060 

19,780 20,725 

(68) 5 

(811) 

(879) 5 



The financial slalemenls which follow consis l of: 

Financial Statements 
for 111 ' t;ear ended 30 Nouember 1 995 

Independent Auditor 's Opinion 

Statement by Auditor-General 

Income and Expenditure Statement 

Balance Sheet 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Notes to Financial Statements 



F. BELL & C O. 
E ll \ll'Oli\T \ T S 

l'rt•tlp I ll aald t lldl 1 ( \ 

I h \ud i t Oll i e~ ol 

lnd pend nt . udit R port 

lu dir Opinion 

lor the ~ft'nr end ed ~W 1ot>cmbcr 1995 

e'' oulh \Vale · for the year ended 30 November 
nnu, 1 Report. Olltcers of The Audit Office of New South Wales are 

-.upportin!! the amount and other disclosures in the financial statements. and the 
unttn ~ polt te -. .1nd ·i nil 1cant accounting estima tes. These procedures have been undertaken to 

to \~ hether or not. in all material respects, the finan cia l statements are presented fairly in 
unun~ tdfldards and other mandatory profess iona l reporting requirements (Urgent Issues 

\1 \\ ) .md statutory requirement so as to present a view of The Audit Office of New South 
tandin~ of its fi na ncial position and the results of its operations and 

n e ;pre ed tn th1s report ha been fo rmed on the a bove basts . 

In m optm n the man ial statements of The Audit O!Tice of New South Wales are properly drawn up: 

to pr nt fatrly the tate ol affa1rs of The Audi t Office of ew South Wales a s at the end of the financial 
r • nd of tt re ulb for the fmam.lal year; 

rdan ~ith the proYI ions of the Public Fina nce a nd Audit Act 1983; and 

in ord nee ~ith. ppllcable countmc: Standards a nd other ma ndatory reporting requirements . 

• mphu i of \Iutter 

pre sed above. a ttention is drawn to Note 15 (c) to the financia l statements 
lo d that uncertainty currently extsts conce rning certain taxation allocations that may impact on 

I mplcryer re erve balanc of the State Au thorities Supera nnuation Board - Pooled Fund . Until 
n of thi un ertainty. the quantum of the fi na ncia l effec t on the individual employer reserves cannot be 
I 

) dn ) 
_Jferur, 
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nranr 
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, tart of Audited Financial Statements 

The Audit Office of New South Wales 

~oP. GEA;~ 

"Q&a -9;>' "' (' .. 
BOX 12 GPO 

SYDNEY NSW 2001 

Statement by Auditor-General of New South Wales 
for Ute year ended 30 November 1 995 

In accordance with Section 41 C of lhe Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 I stale lhal, in my 

opinion, the accompanying financial statements exhibil a true and fair view of the financial 

position of The Audit Office of New South Wales as al 30 November 1995 and transactions 

for the year then ended. 

I further stale: 
(a) that the financial statements have been prepared in accordan e with the provisions of 

the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983, the Public Finance and Audit (General) 

Regulation 1995, and the Treasurer's directions; and 
(b) that I am not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars included 

in the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate. 

A.C. Harris 

Sydney 
21 February 1996 
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lnlOmt! 

udit Fee-
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ntnbution. by Government: 

-.t .... of Report to Parliament 

1al udit-

R \iew of Annual Report 

b\· Crown of Lon Service Leave Liability 

Intere t In orne 

Other Income 

tp nditure 

·e and Related Ex-pen es 

menance and Working Expenses 

Contract. uditin 

puatinr: (DeficiencJ) urplu before Abnormal Item 

bnormal Item- Superannuation Funding 

peratin (Deficienc;) urplu . 

c umulated Fund at the Beginning of the Financial Period 

. dju ment lo Accumulated Funds due to change in 

cumulated Fund at the End of the Financial Period 

Note 

4(a) 

4(b) 

4(c) 

6 

7 

8 

15(d) 

3 

Year Ended 
30.11.95 

$'000 

17,089 

1,042 

550 

30 

411 

179 

411 

19,712 

13,695 

3 .283 

2 ,231 

567 

19,776 

(64) 

(811) 

(875) 

8,383 

(70) 

7,438 

Year Ended 
30.11.94 

$'000 

16,243 

698 

1,634 

38 

847 

116 

610 

20,186 

13,060 

3 ,899 

2,612 

407 

19,978 

208 

1,869 

2,077 

6,306 

8,383 



Balance Sheet 
as at 30 Nouember 1995 

Current Assets 

Cash at Bank 

Receivables and Work in Progress 

Prepayments and Accrued Income 

Acceptance by Crown of Long Service Leave Liability 

Total Current Assets 

Non-Current Assets 

Plant., Equipment., Furniture 

Leasehold Improvements 

Acceptance by Crown of Long Service Leave Liability 

Overfunded Superannuation 

Total Non-Current Assets 

Total Assets 

Current Liabilities 

Fees in Advance 

Accounts Payable and Accruals 

Provisions 

Total Current Liabilities 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Provisions 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 

Retained Earnings 

Accumulated Funds 

Note 

9 

10 

15(b) 

11 

12 

15(b) 

15(c) 

13 

15 

15 

As at 
30.11.95 

$'000 

2,741 

4,366 

621 

151 

7,879 

1,050 

151 

3,439 

1,092 

5,732 

13,611 

68 

1,154 

1,357 

2,579 

3,594 

3,594 

6,173 

7,438 

7,438 

As at 
30.11.94 

$ '000 

3,425 

4 ,393 

426 

8 ,244 

994 

132 

1,869 

2 ,995 

11 ,239 

65 

1,491 

927 

2,483 

373 

373 

2 ,856 

8 ,383 

8 ,383 

"' "' ~ 
~ 
~ 

.0 

E 
~ 

;; 
" C> 
~. 

~ .., 
:: 
~ . 
~ ,. 
~ 

0 

e-
cz: 
;; 
~ 
c 
c 
-< 

:; 

" " '0 
~ 

E 
0 

:;; 
~ 
~ ... 
r-

55 



.. 
,: 

= . .. 
~ 

• 

to. tt: n1c nt f a h I " ' 
lP 

'" f"lo~< from Operarinc: attil'lties 

R lpl fr mOp rc Uon 

P yment I uppliers and Employee 

lnt r ,.,l Rel l\ d 

11 II Flo~<· from lm·eHin~ A.crivitie 

Pure 1 _ Jf Plant and Equipment 

Le< e. ld ImprO\·ement 

Pro eed from Sale of Equipment 

a\/r arrhe end ofrhe Financial }ear (\ote 19) 

Year Ended Year Ended 
30.11.95 30.11.94 

$'000 $ '000 

Inflows Inflows 
(Outfiows) (Outflows) 

19,029 20,035 

(19,247) (19 ,591) 

161 145 

(57) 589 

(589) (797) 

(53) 

15 

(627) (797) 

(684) (208) 

3,425 3,633 

2,741 3,425 



Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements 
for lhe year ended 30 Nouember 1 995 

1 Financial Period 
Th e Audit Office of New South Wales has been designated as a statutory body by S hedulc 2 of the Public 

Finance and AudilAcll983. The Treasurer has approved of the financial year oflhe Office being from I De ember 

lo 30 November to match the Office's planning and costing year. 

2 Statement of Accounting Policies 
(a) Basis of Financial Statements 

The accompanying financial statements have been drawn up In accordance with applicable Australian 
Accounting Standards and other professional reporting requirements (Urgent Issues Group Consensus 

Views). the requirements of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 and the Public Finance and Audit 
(General) Regulation 1995. The statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost 

convention using accrual accounting and do not lake into account changing money values or, except 

where slated, current vaiuaUons of non-current assets . 

(b) Summary of Accounting Policies and Procedures 

i) Non-Current Assets 
Furniture and fillings are valued al estimated cost as al July 1990 plus historic cost since then less 

accumulated depreciation . Computer and general office equipment are shown at historical cost less 
accumulated depreciation. 

ii) Depreciation 
Non-current assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives . The rates 

of depreciation are: computer equipment 33.3%: office equipment 20% and furniture and fillings 10%. 

iii) Revenue Recognition 
Fees are charged for audits. Fees In respect of audit work performed during the accounting period are 

treated as Income and lhe majority of audit work is completed by 30 November each year. For incomplete 
audits al this dale, the value of work completed is determined from lhe Office's management information 

system. For audits with a financial year end afler 30 November, planning and Interim work is recognised 

as work In progress (See note 4(a)). Other Income includes fees for Information Systems Audit and other 
audit reviews and lhe recovery of salary costs for staff on secondmenl (See Note 4 (c)) . 

iv) Operating Expenditure 

Operallng expenditure for the year is allocated on a program basis between the three sub-programs of 

the Office: Attest Audit Services: Special Audit Services and Admlnlslrallve Support Services (Sec Note 
5). Allesl Audit Services relate lo the independent conduct of financial audits as required or authorised 

by statute. reporting lo Parliament. lo the Treasurer and to other Ministers, and to the organisation 

concerned, as appropriate. Special Audit Services relate lo the independent conduct of audits of all or 
any particular aclivilies of an authority to determine whether the authority Is carrying out thos 

activities effectively and doing so economically and efficiently and In compliance with relevant laws . 

and reporling lo Parliament and lo the Treasurer or organisation concerned. Administrative Support 
Services comprise general adminlslralion, research and staff development and training. 

v) Employee Benefits 

The Audit Office Is responsible as the employing agency for the liability for all unlak n Annual Leave. 
A Provision has been established for the full liability al30 Novemb r 1995. Details arc shown In Notr 

l5(a). A liabilily for non-vested sick leav enUUement I not r cognlsed as It is estimated that. on 
average. the sick leave taken In ea h year Is le s than th cntillem nt a crulng In that y ar. 
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B )Ill \ ontnlnttt'" to .1 rreas\11. · pt'nal Dt posits Accoun t "Extended Lenv a nd 

n P I \\\ ount" tlw li.lbtlity lor lone serdn leavt b ass u med by the rown . The 

unt mtt'l" p.l\'11\t'nls lor long st•r..-it'l' I :we t.lkt•n d u ri ng service a nd on termina tion 

P:wm nt" m Hit to Tn·.1sur.· art included In .:~l.1rles .1nd Re la ted Expen es. In 

\A' 0 • \ ('OuntUH! for Fmplone Entitlements" and Treasury ircular 95 / I 0 the tota l 

-.1\l"t d .1s .1 pro,·ision .md an oflseltin~ as 'el ha been recognised a "Ac epta nce 

Lean;~ Lt.lbilit~ The nominal' alualion method ha bee n u ed to assess the 

m-.. tt ''ould not n -..ull in m.lterial 'ariance to the pre ent value me thod . Oncosts have 

dIll c I ulatm_ the lt.lbtlity. DelatL are "hown in ole 15(b). 

nnu, ll n ~:heme-. rei.Hm~ to employee!:> ofThe Audtl Office are: th e State S upera nnua tion 

t te uthonue" up ·mnnuat10n heme. the Ba lc Benefits Schem e (these funds a re n ow 

\' entrnm "'). the fif"t tate uper heme and the Public Sector Executives Superannua tion 

h me D nil-.. o tht re-.cr.e" a "e "ed liabilitie and prO\'i ions are s h own in Note 15(c). 

vi) Comparative Figures 

r- r _ r ... ~ 'e en adju ted to reflect a change in disclosure of s upera nnua tion exp en se. 

TheTr -..ur. poh reqmnn nonnal and abnormal items of superannuation expen se to be aggregated 

h ... ':1 \\1thclr..H\'11 nd the e item are now hown separately. 

vii) Segment Reporting 

n (.. 01 operated 111 one ~eo~raphical segment being New South Wales and in one indus try , 

the prin lp I ll\1ty bein~ the prO\ision of External Audit Services to pu b lic sector organisations . 

3 h n g in Accounting Polic~ 

The only chan e in accountin policy during the year was the a pplication of AAS30 for Employee 

Entltlem nt . An adJU:>tment wa made against Accumulated Funds of$69.558 to reflect the additional 

ll btht) for Annual Leave as at I December 1994 after applying on costs. Th e fin a n cial effect for 94/ 

5 1-l 5 0. There t no financial effect for The Audit Office for Long Service Leave because the 

li blllt • b a umed by the Cro\1.-n. 

4 a) udit ee 

udit Fee income compri ed: 
1995 1994 

$'000 $'000 

16,689 16,049 

udit Incomplete or uncommenced 576 166 
__ \ork in Progr re ogni ed in prior year 453 424 

1,029 590 

15,660 15,459 
Plu: 

672 453 
757 331 

17,089 16,243 



4(b) Contribution by Government- Special Audits 

This item comprises a conlribuUon from Consolidated Fund of $500,000 ($500 ,000 In 
1994) towards lhe costs of Special Audits and $50,000 ($1 , 134,000) for lh ba lan of 
lhe cosl of lhe Review of lhe sale of lhe Slate Bank. 

4(c) Other Income 

Recoup of Salaries 

5 

6 

Information Systems and Other Audit Reviews 
Sale of Equipment 
Other Miscellaneous Income 

Expenditure by Program 

Attest Audit Services: 

Salaries and Related Expenses 
Maintenance and Working Expenses 
Contract Auditing 
Depreciation 

Special Audit Services: 

Salaries and Related Expenses 
Maintenance and Working Expenses 
Depreciation 

Administrative Support Services: 

Salaries and Related Expenses 
Maintenance and Working Expenses 
Depreciation 

Salaries and Related Expenses 

Salaries and Allowances 
Payroll Tax 
Workers' Compensation 
Staff Development and Training (Excluding Salaries) 
Superannuation - (Net of transfers from Provisions) 
Employees' Leave and Retirement 

Year Year 
Ended Ended 

30. ll .95 30.ll .94 
$'000 $'000 

97 290 
242 284 

15 
57 36 

411 610 

10,211 10, 13 7 
2 ,049 1,590 
2 ,231 2 ,612 

489 354 
14,980 14,693 

1,446 1,016 
344 1,234 

34 21 

1,8?4 2 ,271 

2,038 1,907 
890 1,075 

44 32 
2,972 3 ,01 4 

19,776 19,978 

11 ,767 10.871 
748 638 

53 43 
326 253 
119 228 
682 1,027 

13,695 13.060 
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7 \laintenanet: and \\ orking \. pe n e 

ntract .\uditing 

r \\ r patd to contra t a udit agents for : 

Ele triLity Di tribution Clien t 
Are Health er.ice Client 

Information Sy 

R ei' able and \Vork in Progre 

Compri ed: 
D btor (le provi ion S1 5.200) 
Work in Progre 

Year Year 
Ended Ended 

30.11.95 30.11.94 
$ '000 $'000 

1.458 2,084 
720 702 

24 29 
88 88 

152 124 
206 275 

54 101 
112 10 2 
36 54 

433 340 
3,283 3,899 

751 645 
426 652 
660 552 
348 596 

46 167 
2,231 2,612 

At 30.11.95 At 30.11.94 
$ '000 $ '000 

2,959 
1,407 
4,366 

3,463 
930 

4,393 

t 30 0\ ember 1995 a u d it fee $2 .855 .782 ($2 ,646,957) and miscellaneous $117,672 
( 32.197) account ou t tanding were aged as follows : 

At 30. 11.95 At 30.11.94 
$'000 % $ '000 % 

Le5 than 30 day 2 ,690 90.5 2 ,629 75.6 

with 
audt 

218 7 .3 644 18.5 
65 2 .2 206 5.9 

2 ,973 100.0 3,479 100.0 

-~-"'-->""-d value of audit work in progress not billed at 30 November 1995 for audits 
man ·a1 year ended up to that date was $734,602 ($476,673). Work in progress on 

vith flnan ial year ended after 30 ovember 1995 totalled $671,998 ($452,987). 



I 0 Prepayments and Accrued Income 

Compris d: 
Pr payments 
Accrued Income 

At 30.11.95 At 30.11.94 
$'000 $'000 

140 
481 

220 
206 

621 42 

Accrued Income included interest accrued of $69,864 ($52,831) and $411.600 for osts 
associated with lhe Volume Three of the Report to Parliamenl. 

11 Plant, Equipment, Furniture 

Cost or Accumulated 
Valuation Depreciation 

1995 1994 1995 1994 
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Office Equipment - at cost 110 97 74 55 
Computer and Related 
Equipment - at cost 2,268 2,001 1,351 1,165 

Furniture and Fittings - at 
estimated cost July 1990 
plus actual cost since 202 201 105 85 

2,580 2,299 1,530 1,305 

Market values of non-current assets are estimated to be: 
Office Equipment 
Computer and Related Equipment 
Furniture and Fittings 

12 Leasehold Improvements 

Written Down 
Value 

1995 1994 
$'000 $'000 

36 42 

917 836 

97 116 
1,050 994 

1995 1994 
$'000 $'000 

20 30 
850 800 

50 70 
920 900 

The fitout costs of $184,250 in 1992-93 associated with leased accommodation for part 
of the Office has been capitalised and is being depreciated over the seven year term of 
the lease. During the year an additional $53,382 was spent on leasehold improvements. 
Depreciation for 1994-95 was $34,388 ($26,321). 

13 Accounts Payable and Accruals 

Comprised: 
Salaries 
Payroll Tax 
Unremilled Taxation 
Conlracl Auditing 
Other Creditors 

At 30.11.95 
$'000 

88 
91 

402 
131 
442 

1,154 

At 30.11.94 
$'000 

333 
56 

374 
215 
513 

l ,4 1 
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14 udir or' Rl' munrration 

ch lr!...t i y ,\ 
n i i · 0 O\' t'tnb r l 

h,lrtt n d c counting fim1 fo r a uditing the a ount for U1 y r 
5 1s s .000. Th auditor r iv d no oth r r mun ra tion. 

15l r niio n 

(u ~nnuull t'OI't'- urrt•nt 

1011 lh s b n e t.tbh h d for the total liability at 30 ovemb r 1995 of$1 ,205,988. 
habihty wa m rea d to 996.997 following ilie application of AAS30. 

(h) Lon!! !!nice Lea 1•e- u rrent and \ on Current 

TI1c tl t,ll h bilit) at 30. 0\'ember 1 95 wa $3.590 .2 7 and is shown as current $151 ,000) 
a nd n n urrent 3.439.2 7). The liability compri es: 

At 30.11.95 At 30.11.94 

n onditional lea,·e (OYer 10 year ervice) 
Conditional Leave (Between 5 and 10 years service) 
Pre- onditional lea\'e (Le than 5 years service) 

ftJ uperann uatio n 

$'000 $ '000 

3,232 
228 
130 

3,590 

2 ,895 
180 
104 

3,179 

The a e ed liability for The Audit Office at 30 ovember 1995 and funds held in the 
re -en·e account at the State Auiliorities Superannuation Board (including accrued 
mtere- t) and uperannuation provision are: 

Assessed Reserve Provision 
Liability Account Required 

1995 1994 1995 1994 1995 1994 
$'000 $ '000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $ '000 

.a e Superannuation 
Fund 25.736 22 ,901 26,794 24,770 (1,058) (1,869) 

tate Authoritle 
uper Scheme 810 727 844 644 (34) 83 

Basi Benefits Scheme 757 763 602 473 155 290 
27,303 24,39 1 28,240 25,887 (937) (1 ,496) 

The liability for the State Superannuation Fund (SSF) has been detem1ined by the Government 
A tuary as at 30 . 'm.·ember 1995 based on economic assumptions included in the Triennial 

1ew as at 30 June 1994. The e assump tions are as follows: 

94/95 95/96 96/97 There after 
% pa % p a Ofo pa Ofo pa 

alua 10n Intere t Rate 6.0 9. 0 9 .0 8.0 
• alary Growth Rate 4.5 5. 0 3 .0 6 .0 
• C.P.I. Rat 30 3.5 4 .0 4 .5 



Ari ing from lh Tri nnial A luari I R vi w a ' l 30 Jun l 4 of the Stat' Aulhorilies 
Sup rannualion Bo rei Pool d Fund, il ha b n id ntified lhal uncertainly ~xis ls in 
r sp l of virtually all of the individual employ r r s rv balanc s within th Pool<.>d 
Fund. Unlil r solution of this uncertainly, whi h r lales lo laxation allocalion al th ' 
mployer level, the quantum of lh finan ial ef~ cl on individual mploy r res rvcs is 

unclear. This uncertainly has nol arisen from inaccuracie in lh maint nanc of the 
accounting records by The Audit Office. 

(d) Overfunded Superannuation 

The SSF and SASS reserve accounts now exceed lhe respective Fund liability. Due lo 
an increase in the assessed liability, mainly allribulable lo the change in the actuarial 
basis of valuation, lhe surplus oflhe SSF has been reduced by $811,537 which has be n 
treated as an Abnormal item in the Income and Expenditure Statement. The surplus of 
$34,583 for SASS is included as a non-current asset - Overfunded Superannuation. 

Further funding contributions for the SSF Scheme have been suspended with approval 
of the Board. The effect of this will be lhal no further contribution will need lobe made 
for this Scheme until the balance of the Reserve Account is less than the assess d 
liability of members. The non-current asset Overfunded Superannuation is dependent 
upon annual reviews of the superannuation liability for the schemes and the effect of 
investment earnings of the Fund. 
As at 30 November 1995 the liability in respect of the Basic Benefits Scheme is also 
fully provided and has been calculated according lo Board formulas which lake in lo 
account amounts held by the Board in lhe reserve account. 
The Basic Benefits Scheme has been closed following the establishment of the First 
State Super Scheme. Employee entitlements were preserved as al 1 July 1992 as a 
consequence of the introduction of the Commonweallh Superannuation Guarantee 
Charge (SGC). First Slate Super (FSS) has established superannuation cover for 
employees who are not contributing lo any other scheme and employer contributions 
were 5% of such employees' salaries up to 30 June 1995 and 6% thereafter. Payments 
for staff covered by the FSS totalled $210,395 in 1994-95. For the FSS and PSESS 
Schemes The Audit Office has no outstanding employer liability as the contributions ar 
fully funded and vested to individual officers. 

16 Commitments 

Commitments for leased Office accommodation are: 

Lease commitments: 
not later than one year 
later than one year and not later than two years 
later than two years and not later than five years 
later than five years 

17 Material Assistance Provided at No or Nominal Cost 

At 30.11.95 At 30.11.94 
$ '000 $'000 

560 560 
614 560 

1,171 1,228 
557 

2 ,345 2,905 

Audit clients provide, at no cost, accommodation and facilities al their premises for staff 
oflhis Office during the course of the audit. ll is not possibl lo quantify th osl of such 
facilities. 
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n ultant 

\l.l(ht flu.' en a d 10 on ultc nt total o t of 1 7,182. 
on uh, no s m e s of 30.000 ~ r, ingl proj t. 

t tt: t th tatement of a h Flo" 

(b Rt•lonci/iation oj \et a'il u'ed in Operating Activitie to Operating Result 

nd f udited inancial tatement 

Year 
Ended 

30.11.95 
$'000 

(875) 
777 
567 

28 
(195) 

2 
(337) 

(9) 

(42) 
(15) 

(57) 

Year 
Ended 

30.11.94 
$'000 

2 ,077 
(1 ,869) 

407 
(448) 

307 

164 
(49) 

589 

589 



Appendices 

1 enior Executive ervice (SES) Profile 

2 SES Performance Statements · 

3 Internal Committee 

4 Organisations and Activities Audited 

5 Audits Conducted Under Section 45(1) 

6 Work Undertaken for External Committees, Panels, etc. 

7 External Presentations 

8 Publications During the Year 

9 Performance Against Service Standards 

10 Internal Audit Report 

11 Report on Investment Performance 

12 Equal Employment Opportunity Statistics 

13 Progress with Disability Plan 

14 Compliance Index to Disclosure Requirements 
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Po llh n 

umba of Po it10n 
t illcd h~ \\omen 

Band J Po ttion or 
\ 0\ 

pp ndi. 2 

l' nil r F rcuti' l' S n ic ( E ) Profile 

[flw hliiO\\Hl • Hlhll·m.ttion 1s prontkd In ,\l'l'Onl,\lll'l' with laww l I ol till' Annual 

I q>01 t-. (st,\lutor. Bod it's) Rt·~td.ttion HH15 l 

Former ~vel ew Band 
to From 

0/9/95 1/10/9 
4 upper 

7 •I lower 
3 upper 

5 31ower 
4 2 upp r 
,l 2 lower 
2 I upper 

I lower 

Income Band 
For Po Jtlon 

''000 

119 170 
137 14 

II 0 I I 
102 109 

Total 

ES/SES 
End of 

Current Year 

I 
5 

12 
8 

E u ndt r ' I I • I 

Total 

CES/SES 
End of 

Previous Year 

I 
5 

12 
8 

------------------------------------------------Total 27 27 

CEO po~liiOTl!' It!< ted under tatutory and Other Offices 
Rcrrwncrauon Act 1975 not includ d in chedule 3A of the Public Sector 
.\lnnnqerncnt :\cL 19 

11.11lbcr of Po!< trion ·: 
1rt Lite currem year· One level 2 po ilion 
u1 rhe prel'iou,o;; year: il 

, ·arne, pos1t1on held and le\·el of each executive officer of or above Band 3 holding 
ofhce at the end of the reporting year: 

M.r Tony Harris, Auditor-General, CEO under S.11A 
Mr Jim Mitchell, Deputy Auditor-General. Band 3. 

E Performance Statements 

[fhe foiiO\\ing information is provided in accordance with Clause 11 of the Annual 
Report (Statutory Bodies) Regulations 1995.) 

\ame Ir Ton) Harri 

Po ilion and Level 
Auditor -General CEO under S 11A of the Statutory and Other Offices Remuneration 
Act 1975. 

Period in the Position 
Full year. 

Comment 
The Auditor-General is not appointed under the Public Sector Management Act. 
The Aud1tor General is responsible to Parliament and there is no annual performance 
re\iew under the Public Sector Management Act. 

\'a me 1r Jame Mitchell 

Po ilion and Level 
Dep Hy Auditor General Band 3 lower. 

Period in the Po\ition 
ru l ; ear. 

Rewlt\ 

r ~ttchell ad\·1ses and assists the Auditor General in fulfilllng audit responsibilities. 
During the year. Mr Mitchell gave particular emphasis: to Information systems audit; 
to th IntroductiOn of structured quality management; to ensuring EEO principles 
are ·part and parcel· of the Offlre's operations: to the Auditor General's Annual 
Rt-port to Parhament. and to the staffing regime of the Office . 

In ea h of the e areas dbc:ernable improvements were made during the year and Mr 
Mitch II' ontrlbutlon to these and other areas has been most sallsfac lory 



Appendix 3 

Board of 
Management 

Planning Review 
Committee 

Senior Management 
Committee 

Internal Audit 
Committee 

Joint Consultative 
Committee 

Workplace 
Committee 

Job Evaluation 
Committee 

I ntcrnal ommiUccs 

Tl1e f<>llowlng commlt te<·s arc those which have had 11 slgntfkanl Impact un the 
opera tI ons of !he OITicc and t nclude reprcsenla lion IJy :-;Pnlor nwnag<' IIH'lll. Tl H' 

names of exccullve slaff who are nwmbers of llw following <'Oillmllt<'<'H arP s lwwn 
carllt'r on the organlsallon chart. 

To provide strategic direction. help formulate corporal<' policy and nwnllo1 
op 'rallons and finances of lhe Office . 

Composition: Deputy Auditor General 
Assistan l Au eli tors-General 

For review of strategic audit plans and forward resource planning. 

Composition: Deputy Auditor -General 
Assistant Auditors-General 

To Inform and to provide advice to senior execullves on audit opera lions , coverage 
requirements, resource needs and development inlllallves on audit policies and 
pracllce. 

Composition: Auditor -General 
Deputy Auditor -General 
Assistant Auditors-General 
Directors of Audit: 

Peter Carr; Ron Hegarty; Roger Henderson; Stephen Horne; 
Sam Kalagurgevic; Jack Kheir; Steve McLeod; Denis Streater; 
Lee White; Maria Spriggins; Jon Tyers. 

Principal Auditors: 
Mark Abood; Keith Brown; Greg Gibson; David Jones; 

Bill McBeath; Jim Papandreas; Peter Boulous; Rob Mathie. 

Review internal accounting and management functions of lhe Ofnce. 

Composition: Auditor -General 
Deputy Auditor -General 
Representative of Assistant Auditors-General : 

Tom Jambrich 

Assistant Auditor -General (Policy, Research and Management). Internal audll staff 
and the external auditor participate in the commiltee's work as invilees. 

Review of work practices and employment conditions under lhe Structural Efficiency 
Principle (SEP). 

Composition: Three represen tatives of management: 
Geoff Allen; Bill McBeath; Geoff Oliver 

Two representallves of unions: 
Peter Armstrong; Geoff White 

EEO Co-ordinator: 
Glenda Sladen 

To develop an enterprise agreement. 
Composition: Four representallves of management : 

Tony Harris; Geoff Oliver; Lee White; Geoff Allen 
Four repre enlallves of staff: 

Len Stafford; John Hallwood; Olwen Paul; Peter Armstrong 
EEO o ordinator: 

Glenda Bladen 

R •view recomm •nclallons for rcclasstfkatton and regrading of posit Ions tn the Olltn·. 
Composition: Geoff Allen, Geoff White, Bill McBeath, Peter Armstrong 

and two vacant positions. 
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llllfllilt 

l)j abilit) ommittee 

)u lit' \udit ommittc 

mmitt I. tabli hcd 
\boli hed Durin!! the 
r 

l'n It'\\ l·.qu \1 1-:mplo\'lllt'l\l Opport unit~ (Fl"( ) 1\.\an,\gt'IIH'Il( l'l;ul .ttHI 

1 lltltlp 11t h1 pnltt't'l" tot'll"llrt' l'llt'l'lin· impknwnlatlon ol sl r ,l lt•gte::; nnd 
I llllttlltitlll ol pnht'lt's 

ompo ition:Dnt•t·tor nl Fmplo\'tllt'lll Equity: 

Jim Mitchell (lkputv ,\uditor lol'tlt'ral) 

\: ,..1._1 \Ill \uthlot l•t 1\t'l,\l (l'olil'y. He::;earch .mel Mnnagl'llll'lll): 
Geoff Oliver 

I FO ltl tlfllithllor 
Glenda Sladen 

Rq>rt'st•nt.lli\'l' lrom Personnd: 
Gary Beer 

R<'prt'sent,lt ive ol Directors: 
Sam Kalagurgevic 

Spok<'swoman 
Neelam Bhalla 

Represent,ltin: · ol people ol non English speaking background: 
Lynda Paju; Tony Viegas 

Representalin' of men of English speaking ba kground: 
Paul Fitzgerald 

Union repre entative· 
Peter Armstrong 

R<'\ lew Disability Plan and participate in projects to ensure effective 
1mpl memation and policy formulation. 
Composition:EEO Co-ordinator: 

Glenda Sladen 

Administration Manager: 
Geoff Allen 

Staff representali\ es: 
Linda Nicholas; John Hailwood; Ken Davidson; 

Grant Donohue; Steve Hrdina; David O'Brien; 
Corona Thompson 

To re\lew the quality of audil work and ensure that all audits are being 
<onducted in accordance with lhe guidelines laid down in the policy and 
procedure manual and that the attest audit process is being app lied 
uniform!) across all audits 
Composition: Director of Audit (Policy. Research and Management): 

Jack Kheir 

St>nior Audit Manager (Policy. Research and Management): 
Steve Fryer 

Th only signthcant committee established during the year was the Workplace 
Commtttee and relevant details are given above. 

There W('re no significant committees abolished during the year. 



Appendix 4 Organisations and Activities Audited 

(Excluding organisations audited under Section 
45{1) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 -
listed in Appendix 5). 

Aboriginal Affairs. Office of 
Aboriginal Land ouncll, Nrw outh Wales­

Aboliglnal Land Council lnvestment Fund, 
New Soulh Wales 
Yrimblrra Ply Ltd 

Aging and Dlsabll!ly Department (previously Social 
Polley Directorate) 

Agriculture, Department of 
Air Transport Councll 
ANZAC Health and Medical Research Foundation 
ANZAC Memorial Building, Trustees of the 
Architects, Board of. New South Wales 
Archives Authority of New South Wales 
Art Gallery of New South Wales Trust 
Attorney General's Department -

Compensation Court of New South Wales 
Crown Solicitors Office 
Crown Sollcilors Trust Account 
Protective Commissioner 
Registry of Births, Deaths and Marriages 
Suitors Fund 
Victims Compensation Fund 

Australian Museum Trust 
Australian Water and Coastal Studies Ply Limited 
Banana Industry Committee 
Bicentennial Park Trust 
Board ofVocational Education and Training 
Brett Whiteley Foundation 
Broken Hill Water Board 
Building and Construction Industry Long Service 

Payments Corporation 
Building Services Corporation 
Business and Regional Development, Department of 
Bush Fire Services, Department of 
Cabinet Office -

Parliamentary Counsel's Office 
Cancer Council, New South Wales Slate 
Casino Control Authority 
Centennial Park and Moore Park Trust 
Charles Sturt University -

Mitchell Service Ltd 
Olive Street Services Ltd 
Rivservices Ltd 

Chipping Norton Lake Authority 
CityWesl Development Corporation 
CilyWesl Housing Ply Ltd 
Coal Compensation Board, New South Wales 
Cobar Water Board 
Community Services Commission 
Community Services, Department of 
Consumer Affairs, Department of 

Financial Counselling Trust Fund 
Corrective Services, Department of 
Courts Administration, Department of 
Cowra Japanese Gard n Maintenance Foundation Ltd 
Crime Commission. New South Wales 
Dairy Corporation. New South Wales 

Dams afcty oinllllllec 
Darling llarbour Autllorlly 
Department f(>r Women (prcvlow;ly Ministry for tile 

Status and Advanct•nwnt of Wonwn) 
Dcpartm ·nt of Gaming and Racing (prt'viously C'lllef 

Secretaries Deparlm •nl) 
Dried Fru!ls Board, New South Wales 
Drug Offensive Foundation. Nt>w South Wales 
Electricity Council of NSW 
Electricity Distributors 

Broken I I !II Ophir 
Central West Orion Energy (Jl"'vlou~Jy Silorllandl 

lllawarra Pc ,I unnlngham 
Monaro Prospect 
Murray River Southern Mllchell 
Murrumbidgee Southern Tablelands 
Namoi Valley South West Slopes 
New England Tumut River 
Northern Rivers Western Power 
North West Ulan 
Electrtlcily Transmission Authority 

Energy, Department of/Energy Corporalion of NSW 
Environment Protection Authority 

Environmental Education Trust 
Environmental Research Trust 
Environmental Restoration & Rehabililalion Trust 

Ethnic Affairs Commission of New South Wales 
Film and Television Office , New South Wales 
Financiallnslilulions Commission . New South Wales 

Financial Counselling Trust Fund 
Fire Brigades, New South Wales 
First Stale Superannuation Fund 
Fisheries, NSW 
Fish River Water Supply 
Forestry Commission of New South Wales 
Gaming and Racing, Department of 
Gas Council of NSW 
Geological and Mining Museum Trust -

Earth Exchange Limited 
Government Pricing Tribunal 
Government Telecommunications Authority, 

New Soulh Wales 
Grains Board, New South Wales 
Greyhound Racing Control Board 
llarness Racing Authority of New South Wales 
Hawkesbury/Nepean Catchment Management Trust 
Health Care Complaints Commission of NSW 
Health, Department of -

Royal Alexandra Hospital for Children 
Sydney Home Nursing Service 
Area Health Services -

Central Coast 
Central Sydney 
Eastern Sydney 

Northern Sydney 
South Western 
Southern Sydney 

Ilunter Wentworth 
lllawarra Western Sydney 

District llealth Services 
Barwon 
Castlereagh 
Central West 

larence 

Monaro 
Murray 
Murrumbidgee 
N •w England 
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u t h \\',\It .., 

I trntion Board 

\\ Foundauon 
orporatJOn 

t (Australia) • ·o. 2 
t (Australia) • ·o. 3 

Hun er Catchment lana ement Tru t 
Hun \ 'ater Corporation Ltd · 

Hunter \' t rtech Ltd 
In pendent Commi .., on A a inst Corruption 
lndu;;trt.l] Rei uon . 0 pa rtment of (previou ly 

lndu n I Relation Employment. Tralmn~ and 

lrril!,\tlon An"" .md Dlst rlrts · 
Collt amballv 
Lwhl,m Rtglon 
Lowt•r lurr,ty /Darling 
lurrav Rt>gion 
1utTimbldg ( Region 

L.md Titles rt1ce 
oil onst>rvation Bu ' lnes Operations 

\ aluer •t'nerals m e 
Water rn ices Polley Dlvl ion 

Landcom rown l....<nd Homeslt Program 
Law ourts Ltd . 

Legal Aid ommi ion of New South Wales 
Lel!al Practitioner Admis Ions Board (previously 

Bani ter /Solicitors Admission Boards) 
LegL Ia lure 

Leg! lati\'e Hou e Committee 
Public Account Committee 

Library Council of New South Wales -
Asia Focus Pty Ltd 
State Library of NSW Foundation 

Liquor Administration Board 
Local Government. Department of 
Lord Howe Island Board 
Lotteries . SW -

Lottery Ballots 
Oz Lotto Prize Fund 

Luna Park Amusements Pty Ltd 
Luna Park Reserve Trust 
Macquarie University -

CMBF Limited 
Macquarie Convocation Pty Limited 
Macquarie Foundation, The 
Macquarie Graduate School of Management Pty Ltd 
Macquarie Research Limited 
Macquarie University StaJT Supernnnuation Scheme 
Statistical Computing Laboratory Pty Limited 

Maritime Services Board of New South Wales 
Meat Industry Authority, New South Wales 
Medical Board . New South Wales 
M.IA. Citrus Fruit Marketing Committee 
M.I.A. Citrus Fruit Promotion Marketing Committee 
Mine Subsidence Board 
Mineral Resources . Department of 
Mines Rescue Board 
Ministry for the Arts 

Ministry for Housing. Planning and Urban Affairs 
Ministry for Police and Emergency Services 
Ministry of Public Works (previously Office of 

Minister for Public Works and Minister for Ports) 
Ministerial Development Corporatlon 
Motor Accidents Authority of New South Wales 
Murray Darling Basin Commission 
Murray Valley (NSW) Citrus Marketing Board 
Museum of Applied Arts and Sclences, Trustees of the 
'ational Exchange of Police Information 

1 ·auonal Parks and Wildlife Service 
ewcastle International Sports Centre Trust 
ewcastle Showground and Exhibition Centre Trust 

Office of the Board of Studies 
Olympic Co-ordination Agency 



Ombudsman's Oflke 
Opera I louse Trusl. Sydney 

Opera I louse Appeal !"unci 
Pactnc Power (previously Elcclrlclly Commission of 

New South Wales) -
Collieries Superannuallon Ply Limited 
Elcom Collieries Ply Llcl 
Energy Efficient Research Centre Lld, The 
Eraring lloldtngs Pty Limited 
lluntly Collier Pty Limited 
Mount Arthur South Joint Venture 
Ml Arthur South Coal Ply Ltd 
M.A.S Coal Marketing and Finance Ply Limited 
Newcom Collieries Ply Limited 
Paciflcgrid Ply Limited 
Pacific Power Corporation of NSW Limited , The 
Pacific Power (International) Pty Limited 
Pacific Solar Ply Limited 
Powercoal Ply Ltd 
Powercoal Superannuation Pty Ltd 

Parliamentary Counsel's Office 
Parliamentary Contributory Superannuation Fund 
Parramatta Stadium Trust 
Pharmacy Board of New South Wales 
Police Service, NSW -

Commercial Services Unit 
Poultry Meal Industry Authority 
Premier's Department 
Processing Tomato Marketing Committee of NSW 
Public Prosecutions, Office of the Director of 
Public Sector Executives Superannuation Board 
Public Trustee -

Commissioner of Dormant Funds 
Public Works and Services, Department of-

Commercial Services Group-
Commercial Services Group Head Office 
Government Advertising Agency 
Government Cleaning Service 
Government Information Service 
Government Printing Service 
NSW Supply Service 
Q Stores 
Stale Fleet Services 
Stale Mail Services 

Real Estate Services Council 
Rental Bond Board 
Rice Marketing Board for the Slate of New South Wales 
Roads and Traffic Authority of NSW 
Royal Botanic Gardens and Domain Trust 
Rural Assistance Authortly, New South Wales 
School Education, Department of -

Schools Audit - Education Department 
Science and Technology Council, The New South Wales 
Small Business Development Corporation 
Somersby Park Ply Ltd 
Soulh-Wesl Tablelands Water Supply 
Sport and Recrealton, Department of -

Eastern Creek Raceway 
Sparling Injuries Committee 
Slate Authorities Superannualton Board -

Pooled Fund -

Gila l'ty Llci 
I laden is Pty Ltd 
Mayfair Trust ,Joint Venture 

Stale Super Pinanctal Servtc·c~; Llmtted -
Stale Sup r AUF 
Slate Super Allocated Pension Fund 
Slate Super Investment Fund 

Vistajura Ply Ltd 
Stale Authorities Sup ' rannualton Board Trustees 
Slate Electoral Otflce 

Election Funding Authority of New South Wales 
Slate Emergency Service 
Stale Rail Authority of New South Wales -

Motive Power Company Ply Limited 
Wyndoe Ply Llmtled 

Slate Sports Centre Trust 
Slate Superannuation Investment and Management 

Corporallon 
Stale Transit AulhorHy 
Surveyors, Board of 
Sydney City Council 
Sydney Cove Redevelopment Authority 
Sydney Cricket and Sports Ground Trust 
Sydney Eleclriclly -

Australian Energy Solutions Partnership 
Energy Australia Venture Holdings 
Energy Management International Pty Limited 
SEFTECH 
Sydney Electricity Enterprises Pty Ltd 

Sydney Market Authority 
Sydney Organlstng Committee for the Olympic Games 
Sydney Paralympic Organisation Committee Limited 
Sydney Water Corporalion Limited (previously Water 

Board) -
Australian Water Technologies Ply Ltd 
Special Environment Levy 
Special Environment (SELl Unit Trust 

Teacher Housing Authority of New South Wales 
Technical and Further Educalion Commission -

TAFE Slalulory Trust Funds 
Tobacco Leaf Marketing Board for the State of New 

South Wales 
Totalizator Agency Board 
Tourism. New South Wales 
Tow Truck Industry Council of New South Wales 
Training and Education Co-ordination , Department 

of (previously part of the Department of 
lnduslrlal Relations. Employment , Training and 
Further Educalion) -
Adult Migrant English Service 

Transport. Department of 
Treasury, The -

Consolidated Financial Statements. NSW Stale 
Public Sector 

Crown Long Service Leave Pool 
Crown Property Portfolio 
New South Wales Structured Finance Act!villc 
Office of Financial Management 
Off! e of Stale Revenue 

Tr asury Corporation of NSW -
TCorp Nomine s Ply Ltmtted 
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Ben Le. l n p n 

Ben Le.Xl n ports 
holar.-hlp Tn1~t Ltm ted 

Foundation Umned 
lntentatJOnal House 

rtal uperannuatlon 

nal uperannuat10n 

}dney Foundation Limited 
·dney Foundation Trust 

t hm nt Tru 

lh l> Ill \I l.urs .md l'l.umint:. lkparlmcnt ol 

(prt'\'iousl~ Dt•p;lrtment of l'l.lnning) 
U rb.m C ,ltdllllt'll t Ia nagt'llll'tl t Tru~t 
Url>.111 I\1rks ,\gt'IH')' 

\'d •nnary 'urgt't>ns of New outh Wales. Board of 
\\ ,\ste H(t'\Tling .1nd Proce 'Sing ervict> of New 

'out h W<llt·~ 

\\ ild Dog Ot>~truction Uoard 
\\'int> Grapt>s 1arkt>ting Uo, rd for the City of Griffith 

and the hire · of Leeton. arrathool and 
:\lurrumbidgee 

WG IB llolding Pty Ltd 
\\ollongon.g Sport ground Trust 
Work over Authority -

Fund Created By The Associated General 
Contractor In urance Company Limited Act 1980 
Fund Created By The Bishopsgale Insurance 

Au tralia Limited Act 1983 

Fund Created By The Northumberland Insurance 
Company Limited Actl975 

Fund Created By The Riverina Insurance 
Company Limited and Another Insurance 

Company Act 1971 
WorkCover Scheme and Statutory Funds 

Workers Compensation (Dust Diseases) Board 
Workmen s Compensation (Broken Hill) Joint Committee 
Zoological Parks Board of New South Wales 



Appendix 5 

Pa•·t ic ular A udits 

Recomm e ndation 33 

Audits Conducted Under Section 45(1) 

The following Information Is provided In <H'C'orcla nce wllh recomnwndallon No. ~l :l 
In the Public A<'rounts Committee Rcpot-t No . 49 whkh slated · 

10.19 Section 45 qf the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 provide,<; thai tlw Auditor 
General shall conduct audlls at the request of tlw Treasur<'r. a Mirw.;ter or c1 
prescribed person under tile Acl. 

10.20 The Acl also makes provision for the Treas urer to decide wltellter tlte costs 
and expenses of any such inspection and audit are recoup 'dfrom the statutory 
body subject to the audll. 

10.21 As indicated in Chapter 7, the Premier and Treasurer ltas asked Mlrwsters to 
ensure that formal agreement is reached with lite Audllor-G ' Tleral 011 tlw 
payment of f ees. 

10.22 The Committee holds the view that details of particular audits should be 
provided to Parliament. 

It is recommended that the Auditor-General lis/ in the appendices to his office report 
those audits which he has conducted under S45( 1) of the Public Pinance and Audit Act 
including the objectives of the Audit, a summary of the results. the cost of the audit 
and whether the cost was recovered. 

These audits are undertaken with the objective of determining whether. In all 
material respec ts , the financial statements are presented fairly in accordance with 
the requirements of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983, and Au s tralian 
accounting concepts and applicable standards. In all Ins lances the result of audit 
was satisfactory. 

Audit Financial Year End Audit Fee 

$ 
Art Gallery of NSW Foundation 30.06 .95 

Agricultural Scientific Collections Trust 30.06 .95 

Australia Day Council 30.06 .95 

C.B. Alexander Foundallon 30.06 .95 

Dumaresq-Barwon Borders River 
Commission 

Farrer Memorial Research 
Scholarship Fund 
Home Purchase Assistance Fund 

30.06.95 

31.12.94 
30.06.95 

Minister Administering the Environmental 
Planning and Assessment Act 1979 30.06.95 
Minister Administering the 
Heritage Act 1977 30.06.95 
Lotto Prize Fund 

Ambulance Service of NSW 

UNILINC Limited 

Northern Riverina Electricity 

North Power 

Southern Riverina Electricity 
Office of the Minister for 

Public Works & Services 

NSW Insurance Ministerial Corp . 

NSW Treasury Managed Fund 

University of Newcastle 

Staff Superannuation Scheme 

Macquarlc Unfverslly Professional 

Superannuation Scheme 

30.06 .95 

30.06.95 

31.12 .94 

30.06 .95 

30.06.95 

30.06.95 

30.06 .95 

30.06.95 

30.06 .95 

30.06 .93 

30.06 .94 

30.06 .91 

30 06.95 

4 ,000 

1. 120 

4 ,000 

3 .300 

(a) 

1.720 
18.800 

74.000 

9 ,500 
1.050 

72 ,850 

7 .000 

36.010 

40 ,000 

48.000 

8.100 

[b) 

(b) 

5 ,200 

5 ,400 

to 

(c) 

C R 

CNFH 

CNFH 

CNFR 

CR 
CR 

CR 

CNF' 
CR 

CR 

CNF'H. 

CR 

CR 

CR 

CH 

CR 

H 

CH 

NF'H 

NF'H 

Note . (a) Audtt undertaken rl11s .fincl!t c tul \"ear h1 th e Auditor G e neral o/ Quc'£'11.1/anc/ 

(b) The total fee ($87, 700) is llle consolidallo11 qffee . ., for .four Gouemmc•nt 
Managed Punds, inclusive o.ftlle Trea..<;ury Managed Pund. 

[r) The total [eeji:Jr 5 years was $27.500. 

C R = Costs recovered N F R = Costs not jittly recovered 
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\ p ndi \\ n·k ndL' rtnkcn for F tcrnal ommittccs, Panels, etc 

\ , l'n ice on ( ommitti~l' ' 

Du 1 ~ tht n•.1r udlt )llin st,\11 Wt'rt' mtmbers ot lh<' following <'ommtltet' 

pan J..., r " lfklll~ p.1rt1t's 

\md • Dt•p.lrtmtnl of Publit' Works •, en·ict's ommcrcial ervtce 
.roup n 202 ontr.1ct lanagement ommilt e 

tilted nisys U ·en; E. eculive ommtltee 

\lnr · Burktnsltaw • \ustrall,l Qualitv ouncil Publi ector Quality Network 

orrn 81. ·hop 

nFn.tr 

Ln:q Gibson 

r\ndPu Gnce 

TOlll.l Hams 

• El tronic Data Interchange onsultative Committee- Audit 
Workmg Part) 

ustralian OC'It'ly of CPAs External Reporting Committee 

• Au·tralian ociety of CPA SW Audit Cell for the Auditing 
Centre of E cellen e 

• Three month econdment to Council on the Cost of 
Gm·ernment 

• Trea urer' Accounting Advisory Panel 
• Working Party on the Rewrite of Public Finance and Audit Act 

Rog r Hender on • Electricity Distribution Industry Asset Valuation Working 

•ephen Home 

DamdJone · 

PcLer Kerr 

Julie Kmg 

John Lynas 

Jun .\.fiLchell 

Geoff Olwer 

Lynda Paju 

John Roswr 

Le While 

Group 
• Accounting Policy Committee -Electricity Council 

• Treasury Internal Audit Guidelines Steering Committee 
SW Public Sector Corruption Prevention Committee 

• Public Sector Mediation Guidelines Working Committee 

• External selection panel 

• External selection panel for Department of Sport, Recreation 
and Racing 

• External selection panel for Dairy Corporation 

• Australian Society of CPAs Education & Membership Policy 
Committee 

• Convenor, Australian Society of CPAs Auditing Discussion 
Group 

• Institute of Internal Auditors - Australia - National Auditing 
Standards Committee 

• University of Western Sydney- Faculty of Law Advisory Board 

• Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia Audit Advisory 
Panel 

• Industry Advisory Group to the Departmental Head on Local 
Government Accounttng and Financial RpeorUng 

• Land Tax Hardship Board - Boards of Review for Stamp Duties 
and Payroll Tax 

• Australian Society of CPAs - NSW Cell on Public Sector 
Accounting 

• Working Party on the Rewrite of Public Finance and Audit 
Act 

• Australian Society of CPAs Education and Membership Policy 
Committee 

• Vocational Education Training Accreditation Board (VETAB) -
Associate Diploma in Accounting Course Accreditation Panel 

• Annual Report Awards Australia- Adjudicators' Panel 

• Australian Society of CPA s CPA Program Auditing Advisory 
Board 

• Securities Institute of Australia Superannuation Taskforce 

Th total lime 1mo/vement dunng the year amounted to approx. 71 day.\ 



B. Appearances Before Co mmittees 
During the year Audll Ofllre staff appeared before the following: 

Name of Committee, etc 
ommonwealth of Australia Joint Committee of Publl Accounts 

• Inquiry Into lhe Administration of Commonwealth-Slate Agreements for Sp clfic 

Purpose Payments 
• Inquiries Into Fiscal Responslblllly and Whole of Government Reporting 
• Review of Accrual Reporting In Commonwealth Agencies 

Parliament of New South Wales, Legislative Assembly, Publl Accounts Committee 

• Inquiry Into Annual Reporting 
• Inquiry Into lhe Review of lhe Auditor-General's Offlce 

Parliament of New South Wales, Legislative Assembly and Legislative Council , 
Standing Committee on Parliamentary Privilege & Ethics 

Parliament of New South Wales, Legislative Assembly, Public Bodies Review 

Committee 
• Inquiry into Annual Reporting 

Parliament of New South Wales, Legislative Council. Standing Committee on 
Parliamentary Privilege & Ethics 

• Inquiry Into a Draft Code of Conduct for Members of the Legislative Council 

Parliament of Western Australia, Legislative Council. Standing Committee on 

Estimates and Financial Operations 

Professional Standards Committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants In 

Australia 

C . Work Perform ed for Commitees 
During the year Audit Office staff performed work for the following Committees: 

Name of Committee, etc General Nature of Work 
Australian Accounting 
Research Foundation Comments on exposure drafts 

New South Wales Public 
Accounts Committee 

NSW Treasury 

Prepare submissions 

Prepare comments on draft 
Treasury papers 

Approximate 
time involved 

5 days 

3 days 

9 days 
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I Froud omrol 
On 

nd Ri -Takm~ m the 

ud1lin ~ 

udiun~ • nd Health 

ppr ch to Fraud 

ofTh udit 

Staff 

m n of udtt 

rnm nt Rt'porUn 

Inti ru ture 

Pre nt r 
\ l ll .l!Th 

\ H,\rris 

\ !1,\ITI'-

A H ms 

C H 1rn 

C H.trri-. 

Horne 

P Thomas 

• C Harri 

D Streater 

C Harri 

A C Harris 

S Horne 

S Fryer 

A C Harris 

S Horne 

G Gibson 

RRay 

lnf~ tru tu re. 

Certlflcauon 
tl ng 

A C Harris 

A C Hams 

1 udl Horne 

mpor.ry 
A C Ha rri 

Dat 

12 ~)4 

13. 12 -l 

1.1. 5 

23.2 .95 

2-! .2 .95 

6.-4 95 

6.-4 95 

7.4.95 

13.4.96 

10.5 .95 

17.5.95 

18.5.95 

26 .5 .95 

1.6 95 

3 .6 .95 

16.6.95 
Conference 

20.6 .95 

4 7.95 

25.7 .95 

9 .8 .95 

Organisation 
l'n·mit r'g Depart mt'nt Sf:<:~ Orknt, t ion 
l'rogr·un 

Public \ct·ounls ommitt t' eminc1r 

9th Biennial onkr nee of the Australasian 
ouncil of Public Account Committee 

District Health ervic Directors of Finance 

Area Health Senrice Directors of Finance 

ustralian Water & Wastewater Association 
onference (workshop panel member) 

SW Public Sector Corruption Prevention 
Committee 

Australasian Council of Auditors-General 

Australian Society Corporate Treasurers 
Workshop on Privatisation 

Local Government Internal Auditors 
Group Meeting 

Australian College of Health Services 
Executive Forum 

Audit Panel of the Australian Society of CPA's 

Institute of Internal Auditors: Parramatta 
Regional Discussion Group 

Health Internal Audit Conference 

Presentation at Ministerial Staff Induction 
Day 

Australasian Senior Audit Executives 

Australian Society of CPAs Government 
Accountants Group 

Independent Commission Against Corruption 

AJC Conferences Private Infrastructure 
Investment Forum 

Public Accounts Committee Annual Reports 
in SW Public Sector Seminar 

Office of the Auditor General. Western 
I 0 11 .8 95 Australia 

Australian Institute of Pollee Management 
11.8.95 1995 Police Executive Leadership Program 

22.8 .95 SW Pollee Service 



Performance Audit tng 28.8 .95 Internal Audit NSW Dcpartnwnl of 
II call h 

IT Audit Needs Assessment Determining 
Which IT Actlvllies Should be Audited P Poon 30.8 .95 IES onfcn•rH·e on I~DP Audll & IT 

Security 

The Flawed State Revenue Tax Base : 
I low Do We Move Forward? A C Harris 19 .9.95 Australian Taxation Studies Program 

University of NSW 

Governance In the Public Sector: Some 
Comments A C Harris 11.10.95 Chartered Institute of Company 

Secretaries In Australia Ltd 

How True and How Fair- Insights of an 
Auditor A C Harris 16. 10.95 Government Pricing Tribunal Conference 

New Directions In Corporate Governance 
for GBE's and GTE's A C Harris 16. 10.95 !IR Conferences' Annual Company 

Secretaries (panel discussion) 

The Changing Role of the Auditor in the 
Public Sect.or A C Harris 25.10.95 Australian Society CPA's Congress 

Address to Final Year Students. 
Bachelor of Business A C Harris 6.11.95 School of Business, Australian Catholic 

University 

Appendix 8 Publications During the Year 

(The following Information Is provided in accordance with Clause 15 and Schedule 
l to the Annual Reports (Statutory Bodies) Regulation 1995.) 

• Volume Three of the Auditor-General's Report for 1994 (December 1994) . 

• Proposed Sale of the State Bank of New South Wales (January 1995) . 

• Roads and Traffic Authority: The M2 Motorway (January 1995) . 

• Report on the Activities of the Auditor-General's Office of New South Wales for 
the year ended 30 November J 994 (March 1995) . 

• Department of Courts Administration: Management of the Courts (A Preliminary 
Report) (April 1995) 

• Volume One of the Auditor-General's Report for 1995 (May 1995). 

• Joint Operations In the Education Sector: A Review of Establishment. 
Management and Effectiveness Issues (September 1995) 

• Department of School Edu alion: Effeclive Utilisation of School Facilities 
(September 1995) . 

• Luna Park (October J 995) . 

• Volume Two of the Auditor-General's Report for l 995 (November 1995) . 

• Government Advertising (November 1995) . 

The Audil Office has produc dan annual report under the Annual Heports legislation 
since the year ended 30 June 1986. Audllor·General's Reports to Parliament have 
been Issued since before the turn of the century. The Office has limllcd copies of past 
reports available . 
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Pl rformancl' \gainst Srn icc Shmdards 

p ' h lin.~ lfl.lllwt w1th 1,\ust' 15 .tnd dwduk 1 to the nnunl Reports ( tatutory 

u nt ( of t'n ire to it" eht•nts whieh sets out rertaln, en'i est. ndard ' which we 
ult-. bel " -..ho\\ our pt rtonn,\1\ce a~ainst the e ·tandards tor the year ended 30 
I 1 e utllllll sun t) \\\Is used to gather mea. uremcnt Information. 

How Jlleasu red 

rest che<.'k of correspondence. 

Chents a ked to rate u on this. 
industn· 

Internal and external reviews. 

Result 

100% of Engagement 
letters issued. Most issued 
after audit commenced. 

Between "Neither good 
nor bad" & "Fairly good". 

Satisfactory. 

n nd -.t, ndard-.. 

phone conversations. 

mportance to our ell nl and 
that I r pon lve 

• a draft r port. 
nt I Uer ~.~oill be discussed 

u d 

Clients asked to rate us on 
·communication: keeping 
client informed" 

Clients asked to rate us 
on ·availability". 

Test check of correspondence. 

Clients asked to rate us on 
"timeliness: ability to deliver 
the sen.ice promptly". 
Review of records. 
Re\iew of records. 

Review of records. 

Re\iew of records. 

Clients asked to rate us on 
·value for money". 

Between "Neither good nor 
bad" & "Fairly good". 

Between "Fairly good" 
and "Very good". 

Contact name quoted 
100% of the time. 

"Neither good 
nor bad" . 

Deadline met 83% of the time 
Deadline met 95% of the 
time 
Deadline met 58% of the 
time. 
Deadline met 89% of the 
lime. 

"Fairly good". 

Review of complaints records and Sallsfactory. 
annual client survey. 

Rt>.vtew of complaints records. Sallsfactory. 



Appendix 10 Internal Audit Report 

Internal Audit Program 

For lhe year under r view, areas examined by Internal aucltl Included: 

• EDP general controls 
• EDP applicalton review of general ledger, Including journals 
• aucltl fees 
• work In progress 
• payroll 
• non-payroll expendllure 
• enlerlainmenl expendllure 
• the Accounllng and Procedures manual 
• occupallonal health and safely 
None of the above reviews were contracted out. 

Major Findings 1994-95 Audit 

A management letter was Issued during lhe year In respect of lhe 1994-95 audit cycle . Mallers brought to 
management's allenllon included the following: 

• no formalised Disaster Recovery Plan 
• no formalised Information Security Policy 
• no formalised Information Technology Strategic Plan 
• incomplete Accounling Manual 
• Improvements required in occupational health and safely procedures 

Management Response to 1994-95 Audit 

Management's response to the management letter staled lhallhe elements of the Disaster Recovery Plan. Formalised 
Security Policy and Strategy Plan have been formulated and will be completed early next year. 

Incomplete sections of the Accounting Manual will be completed early next year. 

In respect of occupational health and safely, management will ensure that all relevant staff (e .g. floor fire wardens) 
are made fully aware of their responsibilities. 

Administration of the Internal Audit 

The Policy, Research and Management (PRM) Branch of lhe Office Is responsible for performing the Internal audit. 

The Director PRM, in his role as Internal auditor provides copies of all reports lo lhe audit committee and allends 
a ll meetings of this Committee. (A separate Office unll, namely the Compliance and Internal Audit Unit , will 
perform future internal audit functions). 

Audit Plan for 1995-96 

The following areas are planned for review in 1995-96: 

• Operational aspects of the General Ledger System 
• Payroll 
• Accounts Payable 
• Accounts Receivable 
• General Accounting 
• Cash Management 
• Budgets and Forecasts 
• Overhead Cost Dislribullon 
• Vehicle Fleet Management 
• Insurance 

"' .. .. 
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Pll n ii I 1 pun on hn t:'"itnu•nt Pt•rformnnct' 

n 1 5) 

h h II\\ 1-. pr 'ld lln.HlOnluH · wllh li.Hist 12 ol tht• \nmJ.\1 Heporls ( tatutorv Boclles) 

n l n ·1uth nt\ • 111 It rm" tll tht" Public Authontit•s (F!n,uwial ,\rr.mg mcnt~) A< t 19H7. It 

Funds ol tlw Otth t .\rl mdudtd tn tht• Tnasury st'l otl banking arrangement 
p ld U\ tht• rr \sUI")' lntne..,t earmn~s lor 199-l c 5 were~ 17H.5..J5 rom pared to 

Equal Employment Opportunity tatistics 

I pr 'ldt"d 111. tt·ord.uwe wllh Ia use 15 of the Annual Reports [Statutory Bodies) 

Tub/ I: Re., , < lfution and Rt•cruitment of borit:inal Employees and Employees with a Disability (a) 

1.7.94- 30.6.95 1.7.93 - 30.6 .94 

Total Aboriginal Total Aboriginal 
Staff People PWD(b) Staff People PWD 

217 0 10 209 0 8 
0.0 4.6% 0.0% 3 .8% 

4 0 2 45 0 0 
0.0 4.1% 0.0% 0.0% 

( I permanent and temporary sta.JJ; SES staff. and staff on teave or secondment. Does not include 
en: al taff{te. audumg laff on fixed period concracts) consultant staff. staff on secondmentfrom other 
d partm nL and the Audttor·GeneraL 

(b F\.~pl tt uh a dtsabiltty. 

Table_.- Repre entation of ££0 Target Group with in Level (a) 

As at 31.3.9 5 As at 31.3.94 

Total Total 
Staff Women NESB(b) Staff Women NESB(b) 

&I COl 

COl -Bel Grad 9 7 3 12 8 
77. 33.3% 66.6% 8 .3% 

C Gr 1-2 30 12 14 29 15 12 
40 0% 4-6.7% 51.7% 41.4% 

CGra 3-5 49 25 24 45 22 18 
51.0% 49.Q'JA> 48.9% 40.0% 

C Gr d 6-9 67. 17 24 57 12 23 
25.4% 35.8% 21.1% 40.4% 

C Grad 10 12 39 2 7 41 2 8 
51% 17.9% 4 .9% 19.5% 

C Grad 12 23 0 8 25 0 5 

TOT 

00% 34.8% 0 .0% 20.0% 

217 63 80 209 59 67 
29.0% 36.9% 28.2% 32.1 % 

permaru:71l and temporary staff. S£5 staJJ, and scalf on teave or secondment. Does not include 
cas t.aff { aud{t{n!J taff onjlxed·period contrarts). consuliant staff. staff on secondment from other 
departments. and Lhe Audilor·General. 

on Eng h :peaJdn!J Backaround. ie tho<>e who have English as a second language. or who have either of 
pareru.s wiLh EngUsh as a second languag . 



Appendix 13 Progress with Disability Plan 

(The lnlonnallon whl •h follows Is provided 111 accordance wllh lhe NSW Covernnwnl f)bal>lllty Strakgl< Plan's 
"Disability Dlrecllon: Tomorrow's Blu 'PJinl"). 

Process Items Report 

Process Item 

1. Staled commitment to dlsablllly planning by 
management which Is communicated to staff. 

2. Establish and Implement planning structure and 
processes with customer representation. 

3. Establish staff disability awareness process/ 
program. 

4. Develop and refine data base - customer and staff. 

5. Review representation of people with a disability 
on consultation processes and advisory policy 
structures. 

6. Develop accessible and appropriate complaints and 
appeals mechanism for people with a disability. 

7. Initiate evalualion and review process with 
customer representation. Link with broader 
standards and Quality Assurance process. 

Comment 

Commitment was slated In: 

• September 1994 Draft Disability Plan 
• Disability Survey to all staff January 1995 
• June 1995 Disability Plan 

The Disability Committee was formed in October 1994. 
Five meelings were held over the next twelve months. 
The Office has lillie contact with the public, so with 
the concurrence of the Directorate on Disability, the 
Disability Plan covers matters relating to our existing 
and potential staff only, not lo customers. 

As outlined in the Disability Plan, awareness served 
by circulars, newsletter Items, coverage In existing 
courses, SES sessions and separate Information 
sessions. 

A survey lo identify staff with dlsabllllles was 
conducted In January 1995. Database of organisation 
with clients with disabilities seeking employment was 
established in August 1995. 

All staff with disabilities were Invited to join the 
Disability Commlllee. Staff with disabilities arc 
surveyed each six months to ensure they are satisfied 
with the Disability Committee's achievements, 
coverage In EEO newsletter, strategy to Inform SES 
about disability, success of the Office In assisting them 
to maximise their productivity, career and training 
opportunities, the Enterprise Agreement and the 
Corporate Plan as they Impact on their disabilities, 
and lhe application of principle of adjustment. 

See previous polnl. The Office also has a formal 
grievance process which was updated In 1992 

An intensive monitoring process, involving staff wllh 
disabilities and lhe Disability Process. Is in place. 
Accountabilities are in appropriate officers' 
performance agreements. No link to broader standards 
and Quality Assurance yet. 
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IJ "ith Disability Plan (continued) 

I, tion (or IJ•It•t,•,J 

I tht ir n "'l on-.tbtltltl s under dtsabllily ll'glsintion. and ol the principle ol 
tor ttt• un Dts,tbtltt\ .wd Otltn: of Equ,\1 Opportunity In Public Employment 

pn-.-.etl 100 

D .... btlil\ lonumttee tn hclpinc. tht>m achieve ma;,Jmum productivity 
In th EEO 'tw llttt·r 

-.(, ff bout dtsnbiltty 
111 ht'lpin~ them achie,·e maximum productivity in their physical environment 

u n ol the prinrlple ol adJu tment 
p h ·of non-se~rt>~auon 

• Dl tblht\ C mmutee pr -.-.ed 10 :>ali ·faction ratin~ \\;th: 

In th 

md dl-.tributlon of the Audtt 0111ce information kit to list of organisations with clients with 
ek.in_ employment: handhn~ of reque ts of placements or meetings with organisations. 

r re\1 ''. the udtt Olltce created a permanent position for a person with a disability. and provided 
r · e rpen!'n e placement for a person \\;th a disability. o requests for assistance or placements 

ommlllee compl ted many proje Ls includin~: workplace modifications for an officer In a wheelchair. purchase 
n . publi uon of information heel on a si lance \vilh parking and public transport. drafting of a 

on dju tme.nt . or_ Ill!> lion of e ·ecare lectures and discounted eyewear, provision to transfer software to 
hom computer (to. \Otd the caiT)1n~ of portables) and others 

t to c rt In ction bein taken 111 the nexi: re.,;ew period 

and f uio/1\ \'ot ompleted 

• udl of ph_ I I a e to premise· lea ed by the Audit Office and development of Access Improvement Plan 

a tun __ utdehne.., from Directorate on Disability. 

• lnt ration of Dt ability Plan actions and performance indicators into accountable officers' Work Plans and 
Perfi nnan pprabals 

• D 

• tern Introduced and all accountable officers provided accurate progress report: however, 
r have yet to de\elop a Work Plan and others did not have a Performance Appraisal during 

the period under re\1ew. 

red on Induction Course and Selection Techniques Course. to satisfaction of participants. 

b hty I ue Introduced on all courses from I July 1995 but performance indicator "to satisfaction of 
p3rtictp:mt - not ntroduced until September 1995. 

• EEOC to llai \1.1 h pe lfl umt to ensure principle of adjustment Is understood to satisfaction of Disability 

D bItt) Committee ausfled wJth progress made to date in planning stage: courses to be conducted In 

• 100% satisfaction ratin~ with treatment of people with a disability in the 

Committee approv d of the ~uidehne produced and the stringent monitoring process 
d It a dlsappolnUn that two committees had failed to follow the procedures requested 

100% sa lsfactlon ratln~ with ensuring that external training venues had 

pr not mpl by due dat . 



Appendix 14 ompliance Index to Disclosure Requirements 

This Index has b en prepnr cllo facllllal ld 'nllflcallon 
of compliance wllh slalulory disc losure requirements 

(as per Treasurer's Memorandum TM92/9 Annua l 
R porting Requirements) and other disclosure 

r quiremenls. 

Act (Note 1) 

I 6A 

Detail Page 

7( l )(a)( I) 

7(1)(a)(la) 
7( 1)(a)(ll) 

7( 1 )(a)(lla) 
7( 1)(a)(llt) 
7(1)(a)(lv) 
7(1)(a)(v) 
7(1)(b) 

7(2) 

8 

9(1) 
9(l)(a) 
9(l)(b) 
9(1)(c) 
9(l)(d) 
9(l)(e) 

9(1)(0 
9(2) 
9(3) 
9A- 12 

12A 

13- 17 

Financial statements .... ..... ... .... ... ..... ... .. .. . 51 

Financial statements of controlled enUUes n/a 
Auditor-General's opinion.. ....... .... ..... .. n/a 

Response to Auditor-General's report .. n/a 
Current and next years' budgets ..... ..... ... .. 50 

Report of operations ........ (see Sched 1 below) 
Other prescribed mallers .. (see Reg 8 below) 

Report by prescribed person. group or txxly n/a 
D!spensallon by Treasurer............. .. .. .. n/a 

Report of operaUons prepared wllh!n 
4 monlhs ....................................... (complies) 

Report shall Include: 
- charter .......................... {Inside front cover) 

- alms and objecUves ............................. .. 20 
- access ........................... (Inside front cover) 

- management and structure ................... 39 
- summary review of opera lions ................. 6 
- legal change ........................................... 33 

Prescribed particulars .. .. (see Sched 1 below) 
Prescribed form..... .. ............................. n/a 
............................................................... n/a 

Annual Report of Auditor-General's 
Office ............................................ (complies) 

............................. .................................. n/a 

Reg (Note 2) Detail Page 

1 - 4 .......................... .. ................................... n/a 

5 Start and finish of audited financial 
statements clearly Indicated .............. 51,64 

6(a) First budget approved for lhe year......... 50 
6(b) Other budget........ .. ................ .. ............ n/a 
7 Place for Inclusion of budget .................. n/a 

8 Additional mallers for Inclusion: 
8(1) o significant events after year end ......... n/a 

8(2) o prescribed mallers 
- amendment to code of conduct ........... n/a 

- annual report copies printed 
and cost ............. .. .... .. .. (Inside back cover) 

9 Unaudited Information 
clearly indicated .................... (contents page) 

10 .................... ........ .................................. . n/a 
11 Performance of executive officers .. .. .. .. ...... 66 
12 Investment performance ................. .. ... ..... 80 

13 Liability management performance ... ...... n/a 
14 Number of executive officers ... .. ....... .... ..... 66 

15 Prescribed particulars ..... (see Sched 1 below) 

16 Form of report - general: 
16(1) o effective presentation and 

arrangement ..... .. ...................... (complies) 

16(2) o index and table of contents .. ..... (complies) 

17 
17(1) 
17(2) 

Form and presentation to Parliament: 
o size .. ...... .. .. .. .......... .. ...... .... ........ (complies) 
o number of copies for Parliament (complies) 

Reg (continued} Detail Page 
17(3) o copy In c·omputcr n•achtblc· form (compllt>H) 
18 Public availability of report . ..... . (<'mnpllc'H) 

19 Exemptions from provlslonH .............. . ll/" 
20 Repeal .. .. .. ... ... . ....................... n/a 

Schedule (Note 3} Detail Page 

Column 1 Information required In report of opc•rations 

Charter 
o manner of establishment 

and purpose ...... .... ..... (lnsld<' front cover) 

o principal legislation ..... (Inside front cover) 

Alms and objectives 
o alms ...................... .. .............. .. ........ 20 
o range of services .. .. .. .. .. . .. .. .. .. . .. .. . .. .. .. 26 

o clientele served ...... .. .. .. ........ .... .. .... .. . 26 

Access 
o address ...... .. .. .. ............ (Inside front cover) 

o telephone number .... .. . (Inside front rover) 

o business and service 
hours .. .. .. .......... .. ......... (Inside front cover) 

Management and structure: 
o members of lhc body and meetings . n/a 

o significant commlllees 
- names of .... .. .. .. ................ .. .. .. .............. 67 
- members of. ...... .... .. .. .... .. ... .. ............... . 67 

o senior offices 
- lilies .... .. .. .. .. .. ...... .......... .. .. .. .. .. .......... . 39 

- names of occupants ...... .. .. ........ .. .............. .. ........... 39 

Notes 

- qualifications of occupants ....... . .. .. . 39 

o significant commlllees established 

or abolished 
- list names and functions .......... .. .......... 67 

o organisation chart indlcallng 
functional respons!bllllles .. ................ .. 39 

Summary review of opera lions 
o narrative summary of significant 

operations .... .. .. .. .. .. .... .. ........ .. .. . . .. . .. 6 
o financial and quantllallve Information 

about programs or operations ........ 18. 59 

Funds granted to non -government 
organlsallons .... .. .. .......................... n/a 

Social programs .... .. ........ .. ...... .. ..... .... ..... n/a 

Legal change affecting the body 
o Acts and subordinate legtslallon ......... 33 

o significant judicial decisions .. . ... .. ... 33 

Economic or other factors affecllng 
achievement of operational objectives .... 8 

Management and acllvllles 
o nature and range of activities. 
o measures and Indicators of performance 

showing level of efficiency and 

26 

effecllveness . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . .. .. .. . . .. . .. . I 0 · 16 

o nature and xtent of Internal and external 

performance review practices ............ 32 

(I) Refers to relevant section of Alllwul Report.\ 
(Stu/lltory fioche1) let /9114 

(2) Refers to relel'llllt dtww o{Annuul Report.\ (.'itatutmT 
fiod1es) Re~ulatirm /1)95 . 

(3) Refers to ma11er.1 dt•.\crihed 111 ~chet!ul<' I to til<' 
Annuul Report\ (Stall/ton• /Jodw1) Regulatwn I'J'J5 

n/a Not AppiiC'ahle 
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20 
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IllS II / I 
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lopm nt n/ . 

.44 
.. .. .. -15 

Cll s . -16 , -17 
prm Uu•s -t 1 

...................... .. 17 

........................... 17 

78 

r edom of Information 

••.....•...•.... 17 

17 

Rl·quireme nh under Go' l'rnment Pricing 
tribunal \ct 1992 : 

\ •nil'\ to prO\'i(k tnform,lllon n•ganltng dl'lcrmlna!lon 
or rt lllllllllt'!HI,Ition ol tribun.ll ... ....... ... ...... .. . . nil 

Requirements under l'rensur) ircular 
o .• 199 1/ 18 

Equal ~ mploymenl opportunity di do ·ure 
rtquin mcnts: 
I . Conunentan on Equal Employment Opportunity 

achie\·ements ... .. .. .... ...... .. .. .. .. ...... .. ...... . 41 

2 . tatistical information in the required formal . 80 

Requirement under Trea ury Circular 
'\o.1Jof1995 

Annual report · Additional requirements 
Oe\·elopment • In market testing and contracting .. 22 

Requirement under Trea urer's Memorandum 
'\o . T'l92/9 

Annual reporting requirements : 
(a) umber of copies printed 

and cost .. .. ....... .. ...... .. ...... .... (inside back cover) 
(b) Index and table of contents ........ .. .................... 3 
(c) PrO\ided to Parliament in 

computer-readable form .. ...... .. .. .. ......... (complies) 

Requirement under Treasurer's Direction 
TD 900.01 General Insurance: 

Report on risk management and insurance 
acti\ities .. ................ .. ...... ...... .. .................... 34 

Requirements under Premier 's Department 
\lemorandum No 91-27 

Requirements for all 
·sw Government publications .. .... .... .. ...... .. Note (4) 

Requirement under Premier's Department 
ircular ~o. 92/4 

Senior Executive Service - Reporting In 1991/92 
annual reports 
I . 'umber and level of SES positions ................. 66 
2 . 'umber of women in the SES .. .... . .... ... ........... 66 
3 . Performance of Chief Executives and SES officers 

Band 3 and above . .. .. .... ... .. .... .. ... .. .... .. .. .. ... 66 

Requirements under Premier 's Department 
Memorandum l'lo. 94-28 

Changes to Procedures for Making 
Statutory Rules 
I . Annual reports to detail any departures from 

Subordinate Legislation Act .. .. .. .. ....... . ... ... n/a 
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